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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Profit attributable to owners of Wong’s International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2017 amounted to HK$479.9 million, as
compared to HK$468.2 million for the corresponding last
year. The slight increase was mainly due to the increase
in share of profits of joint ventures in the sum of HK$66.7
million and the “change in fair value of investment
properties” in the sum of HK$99.2 million offsetting by
gain on re-measurement of the property development
joint venture of HK$112.2 million in 2016 and the
exchange difference in sum of HK$50.5 million due to
Renminbi (“RMB”) appreciation. Earnings per share for
the year were HK$1.00 as compared to HK$0.98 for the
corresponding last year.

The revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
HK$3,817.5 million as compared to HK$3,529.4 million
for the corresponding last year. Operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$315.6 million
or 8.3% of revenue, as compared to HK$366.7 million
or 10.4% for the corresponding last year. The decrease
in operating profit was mainly attributable to a gain
on re-measurement of the property development joint
venture amounted to HK$112.2 million in 2016 offsetting
by “change in fair value of investment properties”
amounted to HK$99.2 million and the exchange
difference in sum of HK$50.5 million due to RMB
appreciation.

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.04
(2016: HK$0.03) per share for 2017. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.035
(2016: HK$0.05) per share on or before Thursday, 21
June 2018 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on
Wednesday, 6 June 2018. Payment of such proposed
final dividend is subject to approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, 31 May 2018, the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
25 May 2018 to Thursday, 31 May 2018, both days
inclusive. During this period, no transfer of shares will
be effected. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30p.m. on Thursday, 24 May 2018.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the Register of Members of the Company will
be closed on Wednesday, 6 June 2018 and no transfer
of shares will be effected on that date. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 5 June 2018.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division
(“EMS Division”)

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$3,760.8 million, as compared
to HK$3,513.5 million for the corresponding last year.
The segment profit attributable to the EMS Division was
HK$211.4 million, a 12.8% decrease as compared to
HK$242.3 million for the corresponding last year. The
decrease in the segment profit was attributable to the
exchange difference in sum of HK$50.5 million due to
RMB appreciation.
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
(continued)

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division
(“EMS Division”) (continued)

As the tablet sales market has plateaued with not much
growth opportunity, the Group has decided to merge
the Original Design and Manufacturing (“ODM”) Division
with the EMS Division. It is envisaged that the merger
will heighten the focus on research and development
efforts and technological innovations and enable the
Group to enhance its value-added services to EMS
customers.

Property Investment Division

The Property Investment Division reported revenue of
HK$56.7 million, as compared to HK$15.9 million for the
corresponding last year. The segment profit attributable
to the Property Investment Division was HK$370.6
million, a 115.2% increase as compared to HK$172.2
million for the corresponding last year. The significant
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the
Group’s share of profits from the property development
joint ventures, which mainly comprised of fair value gain
from units held as investment properties, and change in
fair value of investment properties.

The construction work for the second development
project, namely Two Harbour Square, has been
completed and some of the floors were leased in 2017.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of
HK$3,547.0 million of banking facilities. Total bank
borrowings were HK$2,008.1 million (2016: HK$1,948.7
million). Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits were HK$844.1 million at 31 December 2017
(2016: HK$1,064.3 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$1,164.0 million, as compared to
HK$884.4 million at 31 December 2016. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as property development activities.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2017 is 0.33 (2016: 0.30). The net gearing ratio was
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen and Chinese Renminbi. Consistent with its prudent
policy on financial risk management, the Group does not
use any foreign exchange hedging products. The Group
recognizes the currency risk in the appreciation of
Chinese Renminbi and will closely monitor and actively
manage the risk involved.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and equity attributable to owners of the parent,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed
approximately 4,227 employees. The Group adopts a
remuneration policy which is commensurate with job
nature, qualification and experience of employees.
In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and
employee related insurance benefits, discretionary
bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.

PROSPECTS

The business environment is expected to remain
challenging with the increase in commodity and
component prices, wage, inflation, currency fluctuations
and interest rate acceleration. To cope with these
challenges, we will continue our sales effort to expand
our customer base and to improve operation efficiency
through automation, lean, energy conservation and
stringent cost control measures. We strive to offer total
solutions to customers via new product design and
development; increasing our services revenue through
new technology development and improvements. We
shall focus on investing in other business through capital
investments as well as making strategic investments.
Based on the current sales orders on hand and
forecasts and feedbacks from customers, the Company
expects that the result of the EMS business for 2018
will be comparable to that for 2017. We will also watch
out the development of trade disputes between United
States and China, evaluate the possible impacts to our
business and formulate the actions to be made.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

The second phase of the property development project
in Kwun Tong, namely Two Harbour Square, was
completed in 2017. Some of the floors were leased in
2017. It is the Group’s preference to hold its interest
in this project for long term and for leasing purposes.
According to current market expectations, interest
rates will continue to increase in 2018. The Group is
monitoring it carefully and will take appropriate action to
mitigate its impact.

We expect contribution to profit from rental income
will increase as a result of the completion of the
development of Two Harbour Square.

AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the sixth consecutive year. In addition,
Wong’s F&B Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was awarded the Caring Company Logo in
March 2016. These serve as recognition of the Group’s
active participation in community activities and good
corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continued confidence
in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BT  BETx BT AEFr  ABET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ RESULTS
g Revenue 3,817,543 3,529,374 3,800,911 4,124,106 3,718,401
B Operating profit 315,612 366,711 227,203 248,156 115,723
BRATS B AIAE Profit before income tax 513,190 518,482 642,878 670,556 99,611
FTiSH: Income tax (33,283) (50,257) (44,645) (53,961) (20,300)
FEHH Profit for the year 479,907 468,225 598,233 616,595 79,311
RS Non-controlling interests - - - - (1,399)
A A ESFE Profit attributable to
owners 479,907 468,225 598,233 616,595 77,912
BEREE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 6,719,963 6,307,567 4,615,994 4,312,616 3,713,259
BWEE Total liabilities 3,203,471  3,322272 1,981,384 2,165,167 2,134,118
FEREAAZ  Equity attributable to
R owners 3,516,488 2985291 2,634,606 2,147,445 1,579,137
IR Non-controlling interests 4 4 4 4 4
BEZNEE Total equity and liabilities 6,719,963 6,307,567 4,615,994 4,312616 3,713,259
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The Directors present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 which were approved by
them at the board meeting held on the date of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property investment.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out on pages 82 to 214 of this Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit
by operating segments are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 as follows:

BT

HK$'000

ENFERE - REREK0.047T Interim dividend of HK$0.04 per share paid 19,139
BORAREIRE - AEREBEITRG Proposed final dividend of HK$0.035

7B ¥£0.0357T per share in issue 16,747

35,886

13
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to
9 of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial
risks and the management of the risks of the Group
are provided in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 10 and 11 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in
flag-selling activities etc. Certain companies in the
Group have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition
of their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events
The Group did not have any material events affecting the

Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year.

15
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:

ELE:
%

REERE Purchases
—mAHER — the largest supplier 12
-~ hAAHEEEMHTE — five largest suppliers combined 31

SHERE Sales

—H&AEFP — the largest customer 32
—RAREFPEMHTE — five largest customers combined 72

BEF HEBBATIBR GLEEMAHE
BARAIAE% A ) RS Z AL HH
BRELAHERNER 2 -

EFEMBHRE
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F12H
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RARZ AR BERELEFTEZA
7K 1% & 58 & 8 #585,436,000T (=
— N4 B #585,270,0007T) °

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) were interested at any time
during the year in the above suppliers or customers.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five years are summarised on page 12.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2017, calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$585,436,000 (2016:
HK$585,270,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares
which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws or
Bermuda laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in book values of property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

JOINT PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Details of the properties held for joint development
with Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited are set out in the
paragraph “Review of business activities — property
investment division” under the Chairman’s Statement.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year amounted to HK$305,000.

17
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Wan Man Keung
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JpP

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Mr. Wan Man Keung
and Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and considers them as independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, aged 66, joined the Group
in 1975. He has been a Director of the Company
since June 1990. In February 2003, he was appointed
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Administrative
Committee of the Company and a director of various
other companies of the Group. He is also a director
of W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited and Salop
Investment Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company. He obtained a Master of
Science degree in Operations Research from Ohio State
University and was conferred an Honorary Fellowship by
the City University of Hong Kong. He has over 43 years’
experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Wong is the
brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael, brother-in-law of Ms. Woo Sin Ming,
who are substantial shareholders of the Company; and
the father of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 40, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She obtained a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering
Management from University of Southern California.
Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael and Ms. Woo Sin Ming, who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.



20

Wong’s International Holdings Limited | 2017 Annual Report

EEEgHREE
Directors’ Report

EEkaREEBREAER (H)

BiTES (&)

PREFEFL - BHF695  R—NLARFMA
rEE -B—NWNEEFNALEARAE
E-FNMAARATHEZES - FiHEZES
LEBEEZESNKE - BEAREE M
e - RZZET+F LA BEILEEER
SEPKAE 8 YNAHNTAEE 2
BERE FITIARNEEEMETARIZE
E - FARBSTARSITMAEZERE
B WHSEBRBZHEREBE LB -
PRERMEBLISEMLTSH L2 - £
MARER Z AT - RBERN —HARRER
ERMITHI0OF - REBETNEEEL SR
TRx B R A7) (A #Focus Media Network
Limited) ZIFRATTES (R —HF+—H
T HEE) °

BRBEE - HF66H RN—HL/\N\FE—A
BRAMAREE - BEFASBEN14E A% -
BR—ANA=ZFNABIMARER -
—ZTNF—AEZTAEARRRES - HIN
BRRBIITHRZEENERAEB EME
FRAEIZEZ - BASRBEEAERZH
E O HEMEREKRERE FREEEKRE
CHWMIRRE+EM  NEFREEIER
A2F 485 o

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 69, joined the Group
in 1985. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. He is also a member of the Administrative
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He was
formerly the Group’s Financial Controller. In July 2007,
he ceased to be the Group’s Financial Controller and
became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and obtained a Bachelor degree
in Social Sciences, a Master of Arts degree in China
Development Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree
from the University of Hong Kong. Before joining the
Group, he had approximately 10 years’ experience
with a major international firm of accountants. Dr. Chan
was a non-executive director of Cornerstone Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Focus Media
Network Limited) (resigned on 10 November 2015).

Mr. Wan Man Keung, aged 66, first joined the Group
in January 1988. After leaving the Group for about 14
months, he rejoined the Group in June 1993. In January
2004, he was appointed as a Director of the Company.
He is also a member of the Administrative Committee of
the Company and a director of certain other companies
of the Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for sales and
marketing and overall business development of the
Group. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and
has over 42 years of experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry.



EEEgHREE
Directors’ Report

EEkaREEBREAER (H)

BITES (&)

REKIRSEAE - HF63m R — NN —FWMA
MAREE  HER-_T——-F—ASHA
BRFEHRRLHERRE - RN —F—hF
T—ARZERRRRESE - RRELTTAR
~AREBREEZEEXNBRAEEEMET
NBIZES - WNETREXRIEBI0FT
&R BR2@BERARREENBA
AIETREFAERAFBZEPRSE - RIMAKR
SEZA REREZEBER EFHARZAE
ERRBIASHE ki HERPIEEE R
BIS - REEERIBERRGAEBIXRTIEX
BEORPIM T AR I ERE LR -

BYFHTES

ZFE L GBS OBE: AF#+ * FCPA
(Practising) * FCA » FCPA (Aust) * FCIS » LLD -
DSocSc ' HonDSocSc (EdUHK) - BA » FAIA (Hon) -
CGA (Hon) * HonHKAT + RFP (Hon) * 3R % 645% °
R—NAANFEAMARRR]REIEHIT
EE - BIARTNARIBZEEGEF - FHELAR
FoRETTMEBAEFE TR - EGET
B WABISESMERERAR - H:EEH
SIERAR AR - BARITERAR - EH
R (R AR AR RFIEEMEZRRAR
NAIZBYLIEHITES - WG ERABER
BERARIZBIUFNTEST (R_E—LF
TZATZHBE) c FHTHREEPEA
RBamEgRE T-E2RNEEEEE -
BRBEBEGRMEZRE - \ESBUAIKRE
ZEGRITERE BEGHAGAER
TMAREARLME A HEER S ERE
BEEAIEAAZRRK -

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 63, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Company and a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He
has over 40 years of working experience in electronics
manufacturing industry and now has the overall
responsibility of serving a portfolio of customers at
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
he held various managerial positions in manufacturing,
planning, sales & marketing departments in multinational
and listed companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma
in Industrial Engineering from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the City University of Macau.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA (Practising), FCA,
FCPA (Aust), FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FAIA
(Hon), CGA (Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 64, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in April 1999. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Dr. Li is the senior partner
of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants
and an independent non-executive director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport
International Holdings Limited, Hang Seng Bank
Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He was
an independent non-executive director of RoadShow
Holdings Limited (resigned on 12 December 2017).
Dr. Li is presently a member of The 13th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He was a former member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong, former chairman of its Public
Accounts Committee, past president of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and former
adviser to the Ministry of Finance on international
accounting standards of the People’s Republic of China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 79, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the H.K.l. Group of
Companies and a director of a number of manufacturing
and investment companies. He is an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited and Tongda Group Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu
had served as a member of the Standing Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and the Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region acting as its Hong
Kong affairs adviser. He is currently a member of the
Standing Committee of the Chinese General Chamber
of Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JP, aged 79, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2004. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company. He is presently a common consultant
for both K.C. Ho & Fong and Yap & Lam, Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former president of The Law
Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association for Asia
and the Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former Hong
Kong Affairs Adviser. Mr. Yap has served on various
public and community organizations and his latest was
as a member of the Town Planning Board, which term
was completed at the end of March 2010. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings
Limited and Hung Hing Printing Group Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, aged 67, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2015. He is a chartered engineer and
a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology, United Kingdom. He possesses 41
years of extensive experience in technology transfer,
technical management in research and development as
well as strategic business development for high-tech
companies. Mr. Cheung was a former member of the
ICT R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of the Hong
Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute (ASTRI). He obtained a Master of Engineering
from McMaster University, Canada, a Master of Science
in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a
Master of Business Administration from the University of
East Asia, Macau.

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 50, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in USA.
Mr. Chan is also a director of Wong’s International USA
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company engaged in
the development of the Company’s original design and
manufacturing business in the North America market.
He has more than 28 years of experience in the field of
electronics manufacturing. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chan has worked in various leading international
manufacturing companies in USA. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from the University of Colorado, Boulder.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence, aged 68, joined the
Group in 1986 and, in February 2003, he was appointed
Director of the Company. In July 2014, he resigned
as Director of the Company but remains serving in the
U.S. Office of the Group and oversees the marketing
and sales of electronic products in the North America
and overseas markets. Mr. Tan is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. He graduated from
Ohio University with a BSEE in 1972 and then went to
University of Michigan at Ann Arbor and got his MSEE in
1974. After graduation, he joined a major corporation in
the United States for about 12 years before joining the
Group.

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 44, joined the Group
in August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant
to the Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for overseeing Administration
in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, Food & Beverage
of the Group and is also responsible for formulating
and implementing strategies and business plans for
the development of the Group’s property leasing and
management. Ms. Wong is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated
extensive experience in various functions of office
management. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Personal information of Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, was conferred an
Honorary Fellowship by the City University of Hong Kong
on 29 September 2017.

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was re-appointed as a
member of The 13th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He resigned
as independent non-executive director of RoadShow
Holdings Limited on 12 December 2017.

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, has served as a consultant for
Yap & Lam, Solicitors and Notaries, which is a firm in
association with K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors and Notaries.

Directors’ emoluments

There were 3% increment to the basic salary entitled by
the Executive Directors and an increment of HK$10,000
to the annual Director’s fee entitled by each Director,
both with effect from 1 January 2018:

RARBF
BEXFS
Adjusted annual
basic salary

RAREE
Exud
Adjusted annual
Director’s fee

BT BT
HK$ HK$
HITES Executive Directors
FRERKREE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben 4,147,000 70,000
FEHLZT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2,182,570 70,000
PRFEE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 738,960 70,000
RS Mr. Wan Man Keung 2,523,560 70,000
BE K JIE S A= Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 1,673,750 70,000
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
EREFT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric - 150,000
B REE L Dr. Yu Sun Say - 150,000
BEXBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap - 150,000
R A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David - 150,000

ARAIZSEERNEHEZE_ZE—+F+=A
—t+—BHIFENMSRBEHNGEE VR
=HFTEE10 ©

The total amount of emoluments of each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EERFETHAEZES

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8  AQRA=ES
NEEZEITHABRAR G SHE AR

F(EERBHLBERN ([FHERBPERK
BlI]) EXVER) 2 Bty ~ RN RESFT
BALHRES LHAEKRIEI2ERTEE
FrzasMAzERmSAR  SKARELET
BOANEFETESFRZNZRESR (12
A7) Me ARG KB RAT 2 Sk

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

BT pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

REQTRGBZHR Long positions in shares of the Company

WS RT

ROBDL

Approximate

ZERHE percentage

EENE 514 Number of of the

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares issued shares

T/ ERlEAARTEGEE Z #as ()

Wong Chung Mat, Ben Beneficial owner and interest of

controlled corporation (Note) 136,828,569 28.60%

TEH BEREAA

Wong Yin Man, Ada Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%

PRF 5 BEHEAA

Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel Beneficial owner 1,837,500 0.38%

Pyt BEREAA

Wan Man Keung Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.21%

i EmBEAA

Yu Sun Say Beneficial owner 500,000 0.10%
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TEKEEHEB A (BEBEEHFRAEED) REAQF
136,828,569 IR R iF B HEm - ZERMNBBIUATF
miEA -

(a) 1,000,0000% B 5 B £ BFREEB/MAIFE ©

(b)  135,828,5690% i% 17 FSalop Investment Limited
BAE MzAflaItRKEE2E8HER
PR o

BRANFHEEN R_T—tF+-A
=t—H  ARBEFHEBITBABLR
EXAZBEATHMER AR SHE M
BOAE (ER REFRHERMEXVE) 2
fetn - MR KEFTREARTENES
K EIEIGRPIFEI5216 R E B 7 2 ie kit A2
BmIOAR - HARBIEETRIMNERRQF]
KR P2 s BOR A
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company (continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were

held in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben

personally.

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Investment Limited,
which was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung
Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2017,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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TERRZ2ER

BARBEEREBITHRARRA R=-F
—tF+tZA=1T—8 " TIHAL(ERF
EZHTBITRABRIN RARR A
MHEERD P EARCERES MGG
FEIBOHRMEEF ZCHMA 2 ERBOXR

INTERESTS OF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2017, persons (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

N register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
REQXTRBZEHR Long positions in shares of the Company
MWL BT
ROBDH
TERFER BB LEREE Approximate
Name of EL) Number of percentage of the
substantial shareholders Capacity ordinary shares issued shares
BB A M)

Salop Investment Limited
FERRFERAA
W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited

FAE
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny

Kong King International Limited

Mountainview International Limited

HSBC International Trustee Limited

T4
Wong Chung Yin, Michael

tHiEH
Woo Sin Ming

Levy Investment Limited

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BB A (ME2)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)

ERAA ERERRZEETEZ
EEINCIER))

Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and
founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3)

EnfiA A (M)

Beneficial owner (Note 3(c))

EFEA (ME3(c))
Trustee (Note 3(c))

ERINCET)
Trustee (Note 4)

ESBAA HABAZESRZEGZEL
1 (M &Es)

Beneficial owner, joint interest and interest of

controlled corporation (Note 5)

HERA G R BE (M5

Joint interest and interest of spouse (Note 5)

Eala A (BEs(c))

Beneficial owner (Note 5(c))

135,828,569

48,231,804

90,163,532

87,928,532

87,928,532

91,943,968

78,658,001

78,658,001

45,820,212

28.39%

10.08%

18.84%

18.38%

18.38%

19.22%

16.44%

16.44%

9.58%
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REDARG 277 (F)

B

Salop Investment Limited&— 8 T BFRL £
2EHEEREBEH AR FL2H[EERFTET
BBz Rem | —EBIEE -

ITEARFERRAAAS - HATRREESZ

A .

TAMEEWR A (REEFKBEKED) RAE
A7E]90,163,532 NP H D - ZER
BT EGHEE

(a) 1,000,000 % H BB EEBAFITE ©

(b) 1,235,000k R BB FARBMAEE 2 ZF
BEZELZTHE -

(c) 87,928,532k Kk BKong King
International LimitediR & —IB 2 # 57T
BE MEBBEEER AL (REEF
KB E G H) Z 155 2 8l 9 A - HSBC
International Trustee Limitedfl] /&5 5T
A ° Kong King International Limited
Mountainview International Limited® &
%A - Mz A BIEHSBC International
Trustee Limited® &#EH o £ AR L4 -
Kong King International Limited -
Mountainview International Limited}&
HSBC International Trustee Limited& &
AR B A R —#£87,928,632A% Ik 15 2 #
o M2 T XK E4a)
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INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. Salop Investment Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief

executives”.

2. W. S. Wong & Sons Company Limited was a company controlled
by the Wong’s family.

3. Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the SFO)
to be interested in 90,163,532 shares in the Company. These
shares were held in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny personally.

(b) 1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife of
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

(c) 87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by
virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited
was the trustee. Kong King International Limited was
wholly-owned by Mountainview International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Kong King
International Limited, Mountainview International Limited
and HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the same block of 87,928,532 shares. Please
refer to Note 4(a) below.
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RAERTRD 2F R (&
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4. HSBC International Trustee Limited# 1% & (18
EEH R EED) R AR F]191,943,968% i 15
FEHEEED ZERDEBATTNES

(a) 87,928,532k BKong King
International LimitediR & — I8 2 # {5
£ # A » MHSBC International Trustee
Limited R ZEst 2Bt A e B2 BH X
MIEE3(C) °

(b) 4,015,436/% }% 15 FASycamore Assets
LimitediB & —H 2 {55t H © MHSBC
International Trustee Limited &% {532

BHA -

5. FAREEREEZFHEALIHRA (BIE
EHREE GG R AR E R —#78,658,001%
R ARED RERDBEBATENREA

(a) 4,449,829 & AR £ BRLAEAERAFEE ©

(b)  28,387,9600% B% 15 F F FEHE %t A I A 15 BA
ZEHFFE -

(c) 45,820,212f& & 5 FaLevy Investment
Limited#E - & AR AIBERREES
EEA RS EAREE - HERLZ T
KLevy Investment Limited& B # 18 &
5 R —4145,820,2120 iR {9 2 M7

BRAXHBEEEN R-_FT—tF+ A
=t—B BEFAUTHBEMEMALRA
NEIR A SARRE AR ) R B R RCER N R 5 &
HIE (R B 56 336 {5 AR € B 17 2 sr ik ffft R 2 #

LA
IR E °

INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed (by virtue of
the SFO) to be interested in 91,943,968 shares in the Company.
These shares were held in the following capacity:

(a) 87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC
International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please refer
to Note 3(c) above.

(b) 4,015,436 shares were held by Sycamore Assets Limited
under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC International
Trustee Limited was the trustee.

5. Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin Ming,
were deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in the same
block of 78,658,001 shares in the Company. These shares were
held in the following capacity:

(a) 4,449,829 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael personally.

(b) 28,387,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

(c) 45,820,212 shares were held by Levy Investment Limited,
which was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael, Ms. Woo Sin Ming and Levy Investment Limited
was deemed to be interested in the same block of
45,820,212 shares.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2017, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 2 June 2010. No option has been granted
under the Scheme since its adoption date and up to
31 December 2017.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge participants who have contributed or
will contribute to the Group.

2. Participants

The participants are Directors of the Company
(including Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors) and full
time or part time employees of any member of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

3. Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company must not exceed
20% of the issued shares of the Company from time
to time.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of
the Company, unless approved by shareholders.
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BRETEHNE (F) SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

AREEREZBRA ZHR 5. Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option
BRERRBZTEIGER  REEFSE An option may be exercised in accordance with the
FE A FAHE AR g & R AR ER terms of the Scheme at any time during a period to
REAREAITE  EREAELT be determined and notified by the Board to each
BFRAHBEAFRIX L BHEF105F1# grantee at the time of making an offer, and in any
IEEpE event such period of time shall not expire later than
10 years from the date of grant.
EBREETEMNEZSENREBNE 6. Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised
REFSSTERNBERTEIN BB Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
IRER L B EBAREETEA - F5E sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1 year
BRERERROERIF - for which an option must be held after its date of
grant before such an option can be exercised.
EABREAXSTZ2EERMARK 7. Amount payable on acceptance of the

HARR

REMBRE  ARABREEZOK
HAMEF2IHAZ MBI T A
DR EREMBREINRE-

option and the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21 days
from the date on which an offer letter is delivered to
the grantee.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

8.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant which must be a
business day;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant;
and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
Life of the Scheme
The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years

commencing on 2 June 2010 up to and including
1 June 2020.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
associated corporations, or its specified undertaking
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in Note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had, whether directly
or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every
Director or other officer of the Company and the
liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office, to the extent permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.
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FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2017, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$952.6 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2017. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free. The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2017.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture
companies are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2017 which has been prepared
with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange ESG Guide”). In the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, for the year under review, the Company
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the Stock Exchange ESG Guide.

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture and
supply good quality products, while caring about the
community, environment and natural resources and
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. The
Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments
to our stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, shareholders and the communities. We
realize that dialogues with stakeholders as well as their
feedback and concerns are crucial for the continuous
enhancement and growth of the Group. Our stakeholder
engagement involved obtaining input from our key staff
members of various divisions and making reference
to the ongoing communication with other external
stakeholders. Materiality assessment was conducted
through evaluation of such input by the management.
The ESG areas and aspects stated in this Report are
considered as material and have significant impact on
the Group. With the awareness of such ESG areas and
aspects, there is opportunity for improvement through
enhancement of our operations.
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This Report covers the core activities of the Group
which involve operations of the two manufacturing
factories located in Shenzhen and Suzhou under our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco Wong’'s
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited, respectively. Furthermore, in respect

of the social aspect, the Company’s principal office
in Hong Kong is also involved. Additional information
in relation to the Group’s corporate governance is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual

Report.

RMBEINRE HERERER

Our ESG areas of concern

TRAFRZ BEERRSESE
Also covered in the Corporate
Governance Report of this
Annual Report
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to minimize the impacts to the
environment and natural resources. Our vision is to bring
good quality products to the customers around the world
while actively control and endeavor to reduce emissions,
wastes and inefficient use of resources and energy. An
Environmental, Health and Safety Committee (“EHSC”)
has been established to oversee environmental, health
and safety matters. Our manufacturing facilities are
constantly managed and monitored under international
environmental quality systems (ISO14001 and OHSAS
18001).

Our Environmental Policy includes:

— Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection.

-  Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to eliminate
or minimize environmental impact due to hazardous
substances or wastes.

— ldentify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries.

—  Conserve all resources through efficient usage.

—  Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements.

— Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements.

—  Meet international hazardous substance regulations
and green requirements from specific customers.

— Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2017, our NOx, SOx and PM were 814 kgs,
1.5 kgs and 48 kgs respectively.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2017, our CO, emission was 21,882 tons and electricity
consumptions was 33,280,840 kwh.

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.

M
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Rk () ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
R RENaEIR (&) Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

BPEREERIEN - —&8/biiHE R EER  Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions, emission
HRE URRSERMEZHEEIRNITE  of CO2 energy consumption; and improve energy
B efficiency include:
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Filtered out CO2 emissions by using active carbon
filters in the exhaust pipes. The used filters were
disposed through accredited vendors.

Procured locality whenever necessary to shorten
the transport distance.

Utilized conference calls and video conferences to
avoid unnecessary transport.

Replaced old cooling towers and applied variable
speed drive air compressors for efficiency
improvement.

Renewed the old elevators in the factory and
received partial subsidy from the government.
Eliminated Y-series motors and changed to two
levels of energy efficiency motors.

Changed 36W fluorescent tubes to 18W LED lights.
Implemented the waste heat recovery project.
Installed timer controls and lighting sensors to the
lighting system.

Applied the heat pump system energy saving
project.

Replaced circulating water pump with high
efficiency motor in air conditioning system.

Used recycling energy system to replace diesel oil
for water boiling at the dormitory.



R HERERRESE

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rk (&)
Ak
HPDEBRUATE ARG E

— BEBRA/ENFKRALETHIEKE RZR
BB R AMEEIAP IR o

—  DAREKEREBIBKIEMR A& o

— REMXBEBRESHHMAKITE-

BREY

il

b

RZZE—tF  EEXNEEREYNEZRE
ZY) 5 Bl A1220F K& 1,080 ° AAlE— @]
BEZROLE  BMUEEEEVRES
BREMETHREDE  BEBREMEHETN
FEEME - WAHIKRBERNE THRRBIIER
SR ZEBRAXHARTREFASE -

EMEOBRENETHERBREM - &
PR EmMUPOR IR R EENH BN DA E
BEEY - BHEIRBLRERYHEROH
EEBRBAREY - HATERERBR
MR DA BRDE -

BPNEFREXKRAAXELRNER
MBEMERNBEREHRFMEKDZ
E-RMNREEREARZRELE B9
e REBIEYR - AIRTTRFIEE R M BEIR K
BMEESN  KERDRMEER -

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Water Consumption
We implemented water conservation programs as follow:

— Changed to pressurized water pumps and carried
out underground water piping system inspection
and repair to avoid water leakage.

- Used waste water to replace pure water for toilet
flushing.

—  Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program.

Waste Management

In 2017, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 122 tons and 1,080 tons respectively. With the
aim to create a sustainable society, we conduct strict
classification of hazardous wastes and non-hazardous
wastes, and hazardous wastes are stored in special
areas, handled by well-trained employees in accordance
with working instructions and disposed through
accredited vendors.

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.

We aim to minimize the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimizing logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.

43



44

Wong'’s International Holdings Limited | 2017 Annual Report

RIE - HERERBEE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRR(E) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

ARENIEE Key Performance Indicators
BREANER
Key
Performance —E—+tF
Indicators 2017
RERHER (R T)
Air emissions (kgs)
AR
— NOx A1.1 814.00
meaty
— SOx A1.1 1.50
FERL Y
- PM A1.1 48.00
= RESHE R ()
Greenhouse gas emission (tons) A1.2 21,882
BB HRRE RN (REEE B & T e a9 HF g 20
Greenhouse gas emission per revenue Al1.2 5.82
(tons per revenue HK$ million)
BEREEY (W)
Hazardous waste (tons) A1.3 122
BRREUNEESEEY (RGEB a8 TR arIEEBEE)
Hazardous waste per revenue A1.3 0.03
(tons per revenue HK$ million)
BmEREEY (W)
Non-hazardous waste (tons) Al4 1,080
BRHREVHNESEEY (RGBS TR a0 EEBES)
Non-hazardous waste per revenue Al1.4 0.29
(tons per revenue HK$ million)
i UORVE BE I E B0 FE b S TS AR RBEM K Bh K B2 TR
—EP &t
Description of measures to mitigate emissions A1.5 In the section of Emissions
and results achieved and Energy Conservation
HilEEEERBEEERMNTT A  BEELE SN AR
BIESINES R EEEYE B — & A it
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes A1.6 In the section of
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved Waste Management
BEREE-—FEE (TRE)
Energy consumption — Electricity (kwh) A2.1 33,280,840
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Key Performance Indicators (continued)

BRANER
Key
Performance —E2—+tHF
Indicators 2017
BB MERBE—FE
(REBEABETWANMEE E?Eﬁ%)
Energy consumption per revenue A2.1 8,849
— Electricity (kwh per revenue HK$ million)
FEK = (HE)
Water consumption (tons) A2.2 294,559
Bl RBELMNEKE (EEEEABETRANFRKEER)
Water consumption per revenue A2.2 78.32
(tons per revenue HK$ million)
fi it B IR (52 A Rz at 8l R TS AR R BER & B 40 B TR
— g5 P At
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives A2.3 In the section of Emissions
and results achieved and Energy Conservation
i B2 T+ K R 5T 8 R PTG AR AR — &R
Description of water efficiency initiatives A2.4 In the section of
and results achieved Water Consumption
BEMEERE (NE)
Packing material use (tons) A2.5 1,597
BREEURNPE ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁg
(REBE¥AETWERERANIZ)
Packing material use per revenue A2.5 0.42
(tons per revenue HK$ million)
R R EZHEHRBERRAERNEATE N
ERNERFEATENTY RIRR&& —BRAH
Description of the significant impacts of activities on A3.1 In the last paragraph for

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them

Mia: EAERTEREFEERBHPFIN G EETT

Environmental Protection

Note: Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used to

s o evaluate the above performance.
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas of
recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal,
working hours, diversity and other benefits and welfare.
We adopt a remuneration policy which is commensurate
with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual
bonuses and employee related insurance benefits,
discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees
based on individual performance. Remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed periodically to
ensure that compensation and benefits are in line with
the market-competitive pay level. We arrange with
some hospitals in China to ensure our expatriates can
receive immediate medical services when working
outside their home countries. The Group is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance, achieving a
highest standard of integrity, probity and accountability
by enforcing whistle-blowing policy. Employees at all
levels are expected to conduct themselves with integrity,
impartiality and honesty which enable our stakeholders
to have trust and faith in the Group to take care of their
needs and to fulfill its social responsibility.

In the areas of recruitment and promotion, compensation
and dismissal, statutory laws and regulations are strictly
complied with. Overtime is on voluntary basis and is
compensated according to the local laws.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

We value diversity, equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination in our workforce regardless of
gender, race, age, marital status and nationality. To
promote the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work
of our staff, the Company has joined the gender focal
point network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set
up by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between
the Company and the Government with a target to
enhance our gender awareness and understanding of
gender mainstreaming. During 2017, our representative
participated in various activities under the GFP Network.
Through these activities, we knew more about equal
opportunity and diversity in the working environment as
well as the concerns of children in the society.

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labor Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/or
compulsory prison labour to work.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to
the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorized institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and management four
steps, safety and sales product and technical training,
skill and tactics of stress management in workplace,
etc. In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-off
for employees who take external training programs
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. We have
internal certified trainers to train relevant employees for
required technical certifications. Employees may also
join external training programs on certifications required.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free from
danger and hazards to our employees. It is our principle
that occupational safety and health of employees
should be given the first and foremost consideration at
work. We implement our safety management system in
accordance with the OHSAS18001 standard. Health and
safety issues concerning our employees are escalated
to the EHSC for decisions and actions. In addition,
certain specific positions, such as nurse and safety
officers, are employed to ensure that the workplace
is safe and that safety device and protections are
adequate to avoid any possible injuries arising from
our work. An examination of whether the workplace
is contaminated by particles is conducted by a
government-recognized third party on an annual basis.
We also arrange relevant workers to take body check
periodically. Furthermore, we provide our employees
with regular intensive training programs to alert their
safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organize and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organized by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

A supplier management system is established for
selecting and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality
of the purchased materials complies with the relevant
laws and regulations. During the qualification process,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department.
The Group only makes purchases from suppliers
listed in Approved Vendor List. There is a policy to get
confirmation from suppliers their compliance of business
ethics, health & safety, environmental protection and
public responsibilities through asking them to sign the
Supplier General Rules of Conduct.

Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our
customers around the world is our main objective. Our
Policy includes:

— Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality;

— Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations as
well as management’s direction;

—  Comply with all relevant legislative requirements on
environmental occupational health and safety.

Product quality and safety are ensured by defining
correct manufacturing process and process controls.
Regular product inspections by both internal and
external professional parties also constitute an important
part of the overall safety program. Reliability tests
are conducted to evaluate product risks. Our quality
systems are in compliance with international standards
like ISO 9001, TS16949 and ISO 13485 standards.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Code of Conduct provides guidelines to all of
our staff to meet the high standards of integrity and
honesty in their daily operation internally and externally
in order to prevent and detect any kinds of bribery
and corruption prohibited by local laws and internal
regulations. This is also to ensure that the Group
operates to the high standards of business behaviour
and ethics in our engagement with customers,
business partners, shareholders, employees and the
business community. Employees are required to sign
an undertaking not to engage in any acts of corruption
when being employed. Business partners are notified
of the Group’s Supplier General Rules of Conduct to
ensure their integrity in the dealings with the Group. We
conduct periodical training in respect of these policies
to employees and refreshing training to employees
involved in purchasing and engineering every year. We
also conduct regular seminars on integrity every year.
We have zero tolerance towards noncompliance of the
Group’s anti-corruption policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
a whistle-blowing program to encourage disclosure
of any misconduct or irregularities to the Compliance
Officer directly in a confidential way. All reported cases
are handled with care by the Group and are investigated
in a fair and proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the sixth consecutive year. In addition,
Wong’s F&B Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was awarded the Caring Company Logo in
March 2016. These serve as recognition of the Group’s
active participation in community activities and good
corporate citizenship. The Group also participated in
various events organized by voluntary organizations to
support and enhance family functioning, and endeavor
to contribute to the building of a humane and caring
society in Hong Kong. We support fund raising for
providing immediate assistance to those suffered from
misfortunes and to promote environmental protection in
community.

Our China factories also participated and maintained
good relationship with their local communities. Our
Shenzhen factory actively participated in the local
basket ball competition and the movie shows provided
by the local community regularly.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role in
various volunteering works, charity events and education
donation with an aim to create shared value and support
the people in need. Besides engaging our employees to
participate in those community and charity events, we
encourage them to bring along their family members.
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HeE (E\) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (H) Community Investment (continued)
R RER

BPRIS L ER - BRE-LENREFRF
Elderly Centre Visit

We visited the Elderly Centre and celebrated the Lunar
New Year Festival with the elderly.

ABtREED

B EEEHFKERTH O ([CFSC)) A 1EHETT ABHERE
Y BASERETEERUTHNEEEBRE -
Mooncakes Donation Campaign

We cooperated with The Christian Family Service
Centre (“CFSC”) and launched the Mooncakes
Donation Campaign, under which mooncakes were
donated and sent to the underprivileged families living
under the poverty line in Hong Kong.

CBEEET
BHABRRED —_Z—LFECHERZET UHBFRENRA A28 -
Yan Chai Charity Walk

We made donations to sponsor the event of Yan Chai Charity Walk in 2017, inviting colleagues and family
members to join.
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HeE (E\) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (H) Community Investment (continued)

EREI2SE2H I RRED BN

HMEBCFSCESEESL ——T—+F (2202 BREMBFEY - RTEALTETIRMHESED - RER
RERREMAUARLTFEI—EETEBBHENKS -

City Orienteering in Kwun Tong Area

We sponsored CFSC Emergency Assistance Fund — Fund Raising Orienteering 2017 event to raise fund for

providing immediate assistance to those suffered from misfortunes; promote environmental protection in
community and engage our staff for team building,

FERPZEE
BM2HETRERHETHNCFSCEREMEM LIRS
BMm2EERAENE T EE4BI200H FRE M
New Estate Support Programme

We joined CFSC Jockey Club New Estate Support
Programme launched in On Tat Estate. We donated

200 Tablet PCs to the needy students who are under
financial assistance schemes.

o

EE R I ORI

BMORIIBRE2ET Bttt 2 BT ERBEE -

Basketball Competition (Shenzhen)

Our Shenzhen factory participated in the basket ball competition organized by the local community.
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e (E) SOCIAL (continued)
HERE (H) Community Investment (continued)

ERB ORI
RFRERRE ZARIIBEHOTARREREHE
BT HRRENEZEREE
Movie Shows (Shenzhen)

During lunch time, workers of our Shenzhen factory
enjoyed movie shows, free of charge, provided by the
local community regularly.

e 75 B 2 8 ORI
EHMR)BENRFRE L s BTRARKET T MERESHE - ARE RPN -
Local Government Support (Shenzhen)

As a gesture of support, representatives from the local government performed two programmes for the annual
dinner of our Shenzhen factory.

BE —E-N\F=A=++tH Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2017, the Company has complied with
the code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except that (a) the
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
occupied by the same person, which deviates from code
provision A.2.1; (b) none of the existing Independent
Non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term but every Director is now subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of
the Company, which deviates from code provision A.4.1;
(c) the Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee, which deviates from code
provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4.

During the year of 2017, the Board had reviewed and,
if required, made necessary changes to the corporate
governance practices of the Company in order to ensure
continued compliance with the CG Code. Details are
disclosed in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board is
mainly responsible for formulating corporate strategies,
approving business plans and supervising the
Company’s financial and management performance.
Matters which may be discussed in Board meetings
include the formulation of the Group’s strategies
and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, annual budgets,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital commitments;
approval of matters relating to the Company’s
constitution and share capital, and change of board
members and auditors; establishment of board
committees; review of corporate governance and the
maintenance of appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises four Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the
Administrative Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada,
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Wan Man Keung.

The Administrative Committee also delegates specific
tasks to the management, which includes the
preparation of accounts; implementation of strategies
and policies approved by the Board; day-to-day
monitoring of budgets; implementation of specific
business and work projects; implementation of corporate
governance, risk management and internal control
procedures and other compliance matters. Management
presents reports to the Administrative Committee (and
other delegated Board Committee) for its review and
guidance whenever necessary.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimize the risk of
unauthorized or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorised to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 19 to 23 of this Annual Report.

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2017
at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the
overall strategy, operation, financial performance, risk
management and internal control systems, corporate
governance practices and Directors’ remuneration.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular Board
meetings and the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company was as follows:

EESERLEER
Attendance at
Board meetings

BRRAESHESR
Attendance at
general meeting

BITES Executive Directors
FAKEE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben

(EERITBAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
FEHzLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 11
BRFE=E L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1
mRE A Mr. Wan Man Keung 4/4 1/1
A& ) JIB 4 A Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1
BIYKBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREELT Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 3/4 1/1
BEAE T Dr. Yu Sun Say 3/4 1/1
BEXEBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 1/1
s SR ST A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 3/4 11
Br EXCFratE SN - RER - IR B EMETIT  Save as mentioned above, the Chairman held a separate

EEhFZT  EFEEBIIFNTESSI

=3 Ny 2
;-ﬁr-%ﬁi@_/ﬂ%ﬁ% °

RBTESECRA  ESQEREHEMEMN
FERUZERBE TIWMIER - IBESE
SRREABREET REFSTIREL
FIBEHHRABHERZERLE -EF
BETRENNEREFREETARERLZ
HAEL - FIBEESEREARARMES
KERLEBRS - HBEFE  EFTHAIM
SBREXER BRBAARAIXN -

meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Executive Directors during
the year.

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is
supplied with all necessary information to enable it
to consider the matters to be discussed. A formal
agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All business
transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are
made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. If necessary, Directors also
have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.
The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.

Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
record of training received during the year of 2017. The
means of such training are as follows:

FINFRN Means of Training
BITES Executive Directors
FRARKREE 4 LEHE  Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben webcast
(FEFITEARE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

FEHLZT HEEE  Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada webcast
PRFEF T #LEE  Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel webcast
BRI IEE HEEE  Mr. Wan Man Keung webcast
AR KB % A4 #LFEE  Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund webcast

BIUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREFT ate /123135, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric conferences/
EHe Hme, training courses/
BIREM KL W@ LB forums/briefings/
reading materials/
webcast
SEAELT #3IER#  Dr. Yu Sun Say training courses
BEXERE Mg Eke Mr. Alfred Donald Yap seminars/forums/
TESs BIEMEL workshop/
MRS reading materials/
webcast
RERBICE EEHe, BEMEL,  Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David forums/
LR reading materials/

webcast
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(a) Both positions require in-depth knowledge
and considerable experience of the Group’s
business. Candidates with the suitable knowledge,
experience and leadership are difficult to find
both within and outside the Group. If either of the
positions is occupied by an unqualified person,
the Group’s performance could be gravely
compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors
can provide an effective check and balance
mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent
Non-executive Directors comprise a good mix of
industrial, technology, financial and legal expertise
to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory
requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has provided an annual confirmation of independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, every Director of the Company is now
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company under
Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, and one Executive Director,
namely Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has
been adopted by the Remuneration Committee under
which the Remuneration Committee shall perform an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve Executive Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and making
recommendations on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
and consider the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management for recommendation
to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
members at this meeting was as follows:

e =&
Attendance
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BRAEE LT (/E) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 11
EXEBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HTES Executive Director
PR FEEIE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate employees
to run the Group successfully. The emoluments of
Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort
required from each Director, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy
and market benchmark.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee.

In addition, the Policy and Procedure for Nomination
of Directors have been set out in writing and adopted
by the Board to serve as a guideline in order to ensure
that there is a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors with
suitable experience and capabilities to maintain
and improve the competitiveness of the Company.
According to the Policy, where a need is identified
and arises for the appointment of a new Director to
the Board, a list of potential candidates should be
complied based on recommendations from existing
Board members, management team, other individuals
who know the candidates and, if it deems appropriate,
a professional search firm. The Board shall conduct an
initial evaluation of the potential candidates based on
the character, integrity, commitment, knowledge and
ability, accomplishment in his own field, professional or
personal reputation, particular experience or expertise
relevant to the current needs of the Board, and in case
of a new Independent Director candidate, whether
he would be considered as independent. Adequate
consideration should also be given to the diversity
perspectives under the Board Diversity Policy. The
Board shall then select and recommend one or more
candidates for interview. Lastly, the best available
candidate shall be recommended for consideration by
the Board as a whole.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Board has reviewed the policies and practices on
corporate governance, including the structure, size
and composition of the Board; and considered the
eligibility of those retiring Directors to be re-elected at
the annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of
the Company. Amongst the four Board meetings held
during the year, two were related to matters concerning
nomination of Directors.

The attendance of the Directors at these two Board
meetings was as follows:

HEE
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
FRAKEAE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(FEFHITEAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
FEHLZ+ Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
PRFEF L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
R R Mr. Wan Man Keung 2/2
Az oK B o A4 Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
BYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FHREBEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 1/2
HFEAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
EXERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
SRR A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 2/2
EEGgREZ L BOARD DIVERSITY

ARBIRAEFENEZT(L 2@z - WAR
EHENEFENEENRBRAESFE LR
AMHESARB 2K - BRARK  EFE
ERMEZTSHEZTEHE - ZBCRER
EXFTR R EE 2 R MIZF — GBI -

The Company recognises the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors
mentioned above.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (continued)

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that considerable diversity exists in
the existing Board of the Company in terms of its broad
experience, knowledge and personal background. The
Company shall continue to maintain its Board diversity
and, when there is any vacancy to fill, to promote the
specific objective of gender and age diversity without
compromising the quality of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating, review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
has conducted an annual review of the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification,
analysis, evaluation and management of risks on an
ongoing basis. Each department under the Group is
required to own and manage its own risks. A number
of management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming its
own view on an annual basis.

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2017 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee), Dr.
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
risk management systems; and advising the Board on
risk-related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Risk
Management Committee held four meetings to oversee
the risk management framework; assess materiality of
risks; monitor and update the Group’s risk policies;
discuss risk reports on key risks; and review the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
system.

67



68

Wong’s International Holdings Limited | 2017 Annual Report

TRER/BRES
Corporate Governance Report

REiERZEEE (&)

ZOrgZEZEARERBEZEGZEHFEX
s

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee
members at the four meetings was as follows:

HER
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
TEHZL(FE) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 4/4
fRFEE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4
BE K 1B 2 & Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4
M3 - Note:

AEEEBATRAATAERE LR AREEEES
o

BEREES

EREEEH-RBUIFRTESTEN B
RFEFHEBL (EREZBEEXR)  BHA
BERERELLE -

ENZREe I ERARRERAKRE Y
B|ERAREZERLG  BRHARE W%
B Rigs AN AR E NS BAD 2 BEK o

REBEE-_Z—tF+_A=1T—BLFE
N BRZZESCEBEIEZHANSEM
R UERETMAREEEHE  WRIAE
Bz SR BRMER - SR B A
ERELUBHREEE BT ERREHNAEE
TE-RERBRER T -LFHRHE
4 FBIIMNEZBED 2 B8 B It LS S
BREEEL 2 Mgt - RS
RABMEZNEREEBE -

Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management

Committee meetings above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee met separately with the external auditors
twice and held two meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group;
discuss the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including review of the 2016 final
results and 2017 interim results of the Group; review
the external auditor’'s engagement letters; recommend
the re-appointment of the external auditor; and review
the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their staffs.
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EREES (E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

TMAEHLBEZEZESEZEHFEENT ©  The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
two meetings was as follows:

HEE
Attendance
BYKHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREE LT (EE) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
BRAE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
BERERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
% B B = AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BHE-_T—+tF+ZA=1T—HILEFE 2 For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
R INEZ AN R KB EETRIEH  remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,

Fize &M T : PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
wmE(BE T
Amount (HKS)
Z R Audit services 2,660,000
EZH RS Non-audit services
—MBERRE AR — tax compliance and consultancy services 460,000
3,120,000

EERGEMETERR2EMS DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BREEE MG AEETELS A KEHRE  The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for

CEMIFIERARERETAEZS1E [ B % preparing the consolidated financial statements of the

BETSRE | o Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 74 to 81 of this Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interest and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue.

In addition, shareholders are protected by the following
procedures as governed by the Company’s Bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable
legislation and regulation.

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”)

1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board of Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

2. The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board of Directors to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM
will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

4. MEREBCLBRRBLHANUEZEHE

FABCRN IR BRI RE LIREZH 2
bR FEBEEME  FHWT

() WEBEXNARARZEIRZESR
(BrAEEERBEER AR E
EETON » B FLAMER]) » BB &
DI+ — (21)1I%EIE‘J\ N
T(10) BB EXA 2 EEBA
&

(i) MEBBXARRZEBRAZE
BIZEHLEE+MH(14)EEB &R
PRTI0)EEBEEXH 2EEA
e

BRABRRAEREER (REMAZ
BEERINNRF

RRABBFET-ABRBEFAE ([
RAFAE]) XLARBEFRITHEG
BRRFRHAREZBRAE

BENEERREAE LREZZ2EBR
RBEREERNVOR=_+52—(1/20)2
AR - B(i) DA 100B IR - AJ IR
BABRFEBEFRE LAMBHEAEERZE
AENX: AR BFERREARE EEMAT
R AREAMMEESBEE  EHKIR
LA HRiE1,000F 2 R it -

4. The notice period to be given to all the registered

shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not
less than ten (10) clear business days’ notice
in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot
be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

(i) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
(“AGM”") every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals

at general meeting other than a proposal of a

EMER BRMBEABEARREE
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person for election as director (continued)

3.

The written request/statements must be signed by
the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one (1) week
before the general meeting in the case of any other
requisition.

If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of
the Company (i) to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that
the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a
sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
of Directors sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or
the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

B—HEEBERRRIEERESEEAMNESF A separate document containing the procedures for
XM e FIERAR QR4 -

a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board of Directors by shareholders

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that provide for
a procedure by which shareholder(s) may put forward
an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the Company.
A shareholder may, of course, at any time send their
enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors of the
Company at the following address or via the following
facsimile number or email address:

Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary
or Chairman of the Board)

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company in the year of 2017. The current Bye-laws
of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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BIKEBREBERATARE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(RERZFMAZAER L A]) (incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
=R OPINION
EMEEFTHRER What we have audited

TKEBREEERAR (A TEEIE27]) The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s

MEWBAR (A THBIEEE]) FEHY  International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its

FR2E24E WA HE - B subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 214,
which comprise:

e R-E—tF+-_A=+—HOKEA

the consolidated statement of financial position as

B ARR T at 31 December 2017;
s HEZBLEFEMNGZAEKEER: e the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;
e HEZBALEFEMNGEEEZEEARK: e the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;
s HEZHLEFENGKEAEZEHRK e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for

the year then ended;

s HEZRAILFEMNLZABEEREXR N ¢ the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

o ABMBHmERMTE  BIERTEEITHE o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
ME - which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.
B RFAGE G AT E R : PricewaterhouseCoopers
BEBEPRAFRET 2 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T +852 2289 8888 {HE: +852 2810 9888 Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888

www.pwchk.com www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

pwc RS Ak
BPNER Our opinion

RPIRAE  ZSHEAMBHRERCERESRTAEE  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
A EEMEOCEAMBIREEDYEE give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
MAAEBHRET BE£EER-_Z—+tF+-F position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
T+ HANGAUBMRANEFEZZBIEF  consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
ERGATBERBRRGEAIRERE W2 ® cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
BEB(ARGOD N EBEREZ BEE - with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

ERENER BASIS FOR OPINION

RFCREE ST ASEMBHN(ESBE  We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong

SHERDEITE - RIPIEZSEA| A Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.

HNETDEARRE B BT4EA B Our responsibilities under those standards are further

WMERENREIEDPIEE— PR - described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

HFIBE - RPITESHETERBZSLARER We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

HEWAKMOEBERRMEER - is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
BT Independence

BEESSAMASHEMN(EESEA  We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
EESTAH)(ATEEISTE]) - %2 HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

BEEE WOBTTERREMEZEE (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
'EE- responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

CE2
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BRESTEIE KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FRREFHASRBERMNERAE RS Key

audit matters are those matters that, in our

UAHGAT K BREANEARTAEENSE  professional judgement, were of most significance in

TH o E U EEEARPBAEELGEATER  our audit of the consolidated financial statements of

KEHESREETERIER - M TEHE  the current period. These matters were addressed in

LEFREEFENER - the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

g

e GFHEEMEME .

HRBETER
Key Audit Matter

FEBEER

Estimated provision for inventory

WARMERE TSR M 23 K FIEE4(d) ©
Refer to Note 23 and Note 4(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEER _ZT—tF+-_A=+—BEENEE
/78 1514,000,0007T ©  BEBKEERIEH
MIFERKHFHTEERER —ERTNEE
7k BPBRER BB A /B BE I LG
EHIET - A E A2 E E B RERERME
B B fE RIEEL R A B E LR AR -
The Group held inventory of HK$514 million
as at 31 December 2017. It consistently
applies a specific provisioning methodology
for slow moving inventory based on products
life cycle and inventory ageing. We focused
on this area because the estimation of
provision involved high-level of judgement
based on historical experience of evaluating
the possible utilisation of the aged raw
materials by making reference to products life
cycle.

R EETPHROERETSEMAML  Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as
N follows:

Estimated provision for inventory

BPNESFTNAEEERETEE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BATH  SHETBEEEEFBTEREMEBIED
TREEER -

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
key controls over the inventory provision estimation
process.

BMEEEFERERENER - Wit (AheiE)
ERERTFEMNMETER UREEERGHELRE
FEEHHNDIT R - ZFTENEEEELZEMm
3B EA LA 788 7 PR &S [R #1154 ) AT R i AR 1B 00 B FE FR D R ER
et WERBRERER -

We examined the basis of the methodology with respect
to inventory provisions and evaluated, amongst others,
the outcome of management’s estimations in prior years,
analysis and assessment made by management with
respect to slow moving and obsolete inventory. We also
evaluated the assumptions and estimates applied by
management to determine the possible utilisation of aged
raw materials by making reference to the products life
cycle without contradictory evidence noted.

BRI E AN T EREERNE - TERA -
T—+F+_A=+T—"HNFERKKEEEETHNE
mBHREMGETERE -

We tested the accuracy of the ageing profile of the
inventory used in the calculation. We performed a
recalculation of the inventory provision using the ageing
profile of the inventory as at 31 December 2017 and the
products life cycle determined by management.



By XA RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

pwc
HifER

BERREFAHHEMESAER - HBEEE
REBRANNMEEES  ETBREEE VKR
KRB ZBEDRE

BRI EEMBHREINERL MREEMIE
B BT EREEMERBERERATA

HYEERE 4 ©

FBARMBEREMBHRERNET  RANE
TEMEEMESR  HLIBEET  ZEEM
FEERATEGAMBRRURMESZTER
R TROBRAFEEREBSEUFFE
BERERERADIFR -

ERBFERTHOIE  MRERMBSEM
EEFEEAERRL RMUFBERSZE
BEokrEhm: BfVRBEAERE -

EERERZEENGEMERR
ARENEME

BERAEFARERBEALSHAMASEM
MCEB M B HRE L) REB(RFEDD
MRBERTEREEEMT B NERS W H R
&= UTHERRBEREUHRROEET
FHEHNRIFRERMEMNBEAHRR A
FREMAMES &R -

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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BREREAE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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R K E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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BREREAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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BRERRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE2—F—+FF+=-H=+—HILF/E For the year ended 31 December 2017
—E-tF  ZE-RE
2017 2016
Bt & BT T BETT
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
W = Revenue 5 3,817,543 3,529,374
H Ay A Other income 6 9,537 10,814
B MR ERBEFEEZEE Changes in inventories of finished
goods and work in progress 85,694 25,635
BT A 2 R B KB #E i Raw materials and consumables used (2,949,893) (2,682,023)
EBERAAX Employee benefit expenses 7 (474,114) (424,391)
FrEREFE Y Depreciation and amortisation charges 8 (46,706) (41,289)
Hith & & Other operating expenses 8 (205,321) (185,955)
REMELABEEZY Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 99,776 551
Hth (E518) Wz — %%  Other (losses)/gains - net 9 (20,904) 133,995
& B A A Operating profit 315,612 366,711
BEWRA Finance income 11 9,426 6,422
BER AR Finance costs 11 (42,572) (20,654)
BN R (BER),/ Share of (loss)/profit of an associate
e 18 (1,355) 614
JE1h & & 1 Share of profits of joint ventures 19 232,079 165,389
BR P 15 B¢ A0 7 Profit before income tax 513,190 518,482
P15 5 5 2 Income tax expense 12 (33,283) (50,257)
BRPTS B &7 E Profit after income tax 479,907 468,225
ANBEE AELFE Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 479,907 468,225
FERESR Non-controlling interests - -
479,907 468,225
AATHEEAEML Earnings per share attributable to
FEBRER owners of the Company during
the year
BN Basic 14 HK$1.00 HK$0.98
#8 Diluted 14 HK$1.00 HK$0.98
%89121452%‘?73’5 FEMBIHREX 24 The notes on pages 89 to 214 are an integral part of

D)

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2—F—+FF+=-H=+—HILF/E For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E-—tF Z—ZE—RF

2017 2016
B 5 B¥T T BT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FEMNEB Profit for the year 479,907 468,225
HttZ2EWA : Other comprehensive income:
A EHH P EEBR Z1EHE | Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
AEHESHMEEANR  Changes in fair value of
EEe available-for-sale financial
assets 21 (464) (11,829)
B0 RENRREKZ Impairment for available-for-sale
AHHESMEEME  financial assets reclassified to
income statement 464 11,793
RensH+—FE Cash flow hedge — fair value loss
ARBEERE for the year 29 (4,101) -
fﬁémug%ﬁlﬂ BE#®  Cash flow hedge — deferred
BT income tax recognised 22 677 -
BEBBmEEE Currency translation differences:
—REE - Group 97,723 (81,617)
/N — Associates 54 -
EFEHMEEKAS Other comprehensive income/
CUBR) CBHEBR (loss) for the year, netoftax 94,353 | (81,653)
FEXEHWBALE Total comprehensive income
for the year 574,260 386,572
FE4L - Attributable to:
ZAN/NESIE Z SN Owners of the Company 574,260 386,572
FE 12 AR Non-controlling interests - -
FEXEHWBALE Total comprehensive income
for the year 574,260 386,572

FEROE214B Z MitT A%GEA M EHEA 4 The notes on pages 89 to 214 are an integral part of
2o o these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-F—+F+-FH=+—H Asat31 December 2017

—E-tF  ZE-RF
2017 2016
BsE BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y ERN Y E Property, plant and equipment 15 348,348 282,000
A Investment properties 16 2,355,251 1,891,536
T & £ fo £ 3 {5 FHE Leasehold land and land use rights 17 18,298 17,720
& N AR E Investments in associates 18 30,495 33,796
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures 19 1,183,905 951,826
—H HEEMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 2,531 31
BEEFSHERE Deferred income tax assets 22 15,758 12,656
71 & B A fE R AR 3K Deposits and other receivables 26 24,446 11,526
HBRHIHRE Restricted cash 28 - 3,362
3,979,032 3,204,453
REEE Current assets
e Inventories 23 514,474 396,528
ETERMEFE Stock of completed properties 24 369,715 732,310
FEWE 5 BR X Trade receivables 25 910,284 830,844
TBRNHRIE - Fle Kk Prepayments, deposits and other
Hth fE g BR X receivables 26 99,704 70,332
AtHEemEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 658 1,122
JIE Wit 2 A R FROR Amounts due from associates 27 2,009 9
& HAR] Bl FT 1S AR Current income tax recoverable - 7,706
ERITIE K Short-term bank deposits 28 373,630 469,657
ReLRSEFEYD Cash and cash equivalents 28 470,457 594,606
e eeeiieieiiieiieiiiieiiiiieiieieeoo.._. 2,740,931 3,108,114
mEE Total assets 6,719,963 6,307,567
= EQUITY
BERERLTEEA Equity attributable to owners
2R of the Company
RN Share capital 33 47,848 47,848
E b f# Other reserves 34 565,791 460,693
REBEF Retained earnings 34
— BRI E — Proposed dividend 16,747 23,924
— H A — Others 2,886,102 2,452,826
3,516,488 2,985,291
IEERER Non-controlling interests 34 4 4
R Total equity 3,516,492 2,985,295



e BB R

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-ZE—+F+=-H=+—H Asat31 December 2017

—E—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
B 5 BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=L LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
TESMT A Derivative financial instruments 29 4,221 234
BT AR Deferred income tax liabilities 22 95,233 94,815
=N Borrowings 32 1,346,446 1,312,500
R 1,445,900 1,407,549
REBEE Current liabilities
FERE SRR Trade payables 30 693,654 724,438
JEErBE A R HEME[IRF  Accruals and other payables 31 361,594 329,375
AN N B Amount due to an associate 27 - 11,622
BHIFEHAE Current income tax liabilities 40,665 213,131
BN Borrowings 32 661,658 636,157
e 1,757,571 1,914,723
wes| Total liabilites 3,203,471 3,322,272
HEZNREE Total equity and liabilities 6,719,963 6,307,567

FAaMBRRENR_FT-N\F=ZA=-+t
PREFSHENRKETE AR TINES

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

REREE: 27 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:
FEFK FEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
FEFITHAAE s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director

']jl_l

F80E214BH v M AL A MEHRE 4 The notes on pages 89 to 214 are an integral part of
4y o these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—FT—+F1+=H=+—HIF/E For The year ended 31 December 2017

ARAEBNERL
Attributable to owners of the Company
e RIVEE Bt FERER @5t
Non-
Share Share Other  controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(WiF33)  (Wirsd)  (WEE34)  (MHiE3d)
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 34)
A¥TT  BETn E%Tx BB BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-~¥-A—-H As at 1 January 2016 47,848 153,025 2,433,733 4 2,634,610
2EHA Comprehensive income
RRME  Poftforteyer S T deas - B2
L ESTION Other comprehensive income
HHESHEE Changes in fair value of
ArEER available-for-sale financial assets - - (11,829) - (11,829)
ENNEERERY Impairment for available-for-sale
A ESHAERNE financial assets reclassified to income
statement - - 11,793 - 11,793
RHAEER Currency translation differences - - (81,617) - (81617)
ROSEERAE Tota other comprefensiveloss SR e - (81688
EEMARR Totel comprefensive income o o seese T %862
BEEAZRS Transactions with owners
BEREAARREAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (35,887) - (35,887)
EREACORE Total transactions with owners - - (%80 - (35887).
RZZ—"ET-A=T-H As at 31 December 2016 47,848 153,025 2,784,418 4 2985295
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HE2—F—+FF+_-H=+—HIF/E For The year ended 31 December 2017
NG 2N
Attributable to owners of the Company
R& R EE At FERER &t
Non-
Share Share Other  controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(Hr&33) (Hr&E34) (Ht&E34) (HizE3d)
(Note 33) (Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 34)
BT BETRT BETR BETT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
RZE—+%-fA—-H As at 1 January 2017 47,848 153,025 2,784,418 4 2,985,295
2EHA Comprehensive income
FEAE O Poftforteyear o oA - A
EESTON Other comprehensive income
HEESHEELAEEZS  Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets - - (464) - (464)
ENMpBENERL Impairment for available-for-
A ESHAERE sale financial assets reclassified to
income statement - - 464 - 464
ERpEEY Currency translation differences - - 97,777 - 97,777
Remgyn-£¢ Cash flow hedge - fair value
MMEERS loss for the year - - (4,101) - (4,101)
Rensdt-cHR Cash flow hedge - deferred income
BEFEH tax recognised - - 677 - 677
RRESARE Total other comprefiensive income S L. S T 8
sEMARR Totel comprehensive income. S L T, 57420
REBALRS Transactions with owners
ERALERBAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (43,063) - (43,063)
REBNCRARE Tota transactions with owners SR L .. O T (83063)
R-B-tE+-A=1-A As at 31 December 2017 47,848 153,025 3,315,615 4 3,516,492
E8IE214B Y N RZREMBHMEKRZHE  The notes on pages 89 to 214 are an integral part of
BB S o these consolidated financial statements.
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mEBRERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE2—F—+F1+-H=+—HI/E For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
B & BT T BT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BETBRMEBHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
EEBEANE S FE Net cash generated from operations  35(a) 82,472 197,856
ERNBEEREH Hong Kong profits tax paid (178,142) -
BRSNS K Overseas tax paid (33,004) (42,541)
BBEFBRER Hong Kong profits tax refund 5,008 1,329
BWONR R 3K Overseas tax refund 4,418 2,045
EANEAIN Interest paid (42,572) (20,654)
EEES (FFA) Net cash (used in)/generated from
EENRESFEE operating activities (161,820) 138,035
RETHBHEERE Cash flows from investing activities
IR BB B A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of
(MR ERS) cash acquired 38 - (760,612)
BAVE BEREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (99,653) (54,055)
LEWE  WEREE Proceeds from disposal of property,
FIECECE plant and equipment 35(b) 1,587 1,701
HEHIESHEERN Net proceeds from disposal of
RS KA AR AR 10 2 nil-paid rights shares of an
FRi8 skI8F 58 available-for-sale financial asset - 789
AHHESREER Additional investment in
BIMNEE available-for-sale financial assets (2,500) -
JiE Ui Bt 5 X R SR IE 3 N Increase in amounts due from
associates - (3)
B & A RIM RN A Additional investment in an associate (11,622) (21,560)
RERITIE Decrease/(increase) in short-term
B, ($Eh) bank deposits 101,412 (274,745)
PR HI3R 2 R A Decrease in restricted cash 3,362 -
ERTEEDRE Loans to joint ventures - (131,641)
=R G Interest received 9,426 6,422
REZTEELE(FA) Net cash generated from/(used in)
MBS FE investing activities 2,012 (1,233,704)
METBHFRESRENRE Cash flows from financing activities
EEBIERITER (Decrease)/increase in trust receipt
CRA) /&% bank loans — net (129,828) 54,530
MERITER New bank loans 572,000 970,813
BEEBITER Repayment of bank loans (382,725) (91,929)
2R A Dividends paid (43,063) (35,887)
METBELENESFE Net cash generated from financing
e activites 16,384 = 897,527
RERBSZEEY2ED Net decrease in cash and cash
FE equivalents (143,424) (198,142)
FAzEEREESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 594,606 807,973
EBHmEZERE Currency translation differences 19,275 (15,225)
FRIBERREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 28 470,457 594,606

o

£
F &R

these consolidated financial statements.

8OE214B v MitE A% A M EMER 24 The notes on pages 89 to 214 are an integral part of
7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 —REHR

IREEEBRAERAR (ARA]) K&
HBor (SR AKE]) T2XE
% 8 HERDOBEETEM A

KYEEE -

AARITTRBRESMKYT 2 EH
REREEAA MR EEREE
&2 255 Bz A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda X A& NEEIEEEET1085%

HMEBIRAEITE -

ARBIZBNEBRBEEH AR ZMAN

BRABERE -

Br= A=A

A ttLBREE=ESHETIE -

2 FESTHREBE

EIREGREMBREAMEBZEER
SETHRENTX - R BHERIN

ERRECRFABEZINFEEREN

RAEPBHRRABEE
2% - HFEMBHRREN T —N\F

Z

o

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property investment.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, N0.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.1 RBEE

(a)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance

These consolidated financial statements
of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Historical cost convention

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, as modified by revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties, which are carried
at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(a)

Amendments to existing standards
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2017

Standards Subject of amendment
Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative
HKAS 7
Amendments to  Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to
HKFRS 12

Annual Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

The adoption of these amendments
did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods.
Most of the amendments will also not
affect the current or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESHHEHME(EH) 2

2.1 RBEZE(E)

211 B BEEHREE (F)

POLICIES (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b) ¥TETZERI LA K38 B 8] (b) New standards and amendments to

ZAEETIRE M - R
—E—t+tF—H—B8H
16 2 BBV T M R AR
BARERPHEMN

BEREREENE1R 2 ETR
Amendments to HKFRS 1
BB BREERFER 2 BTN
Amendments to HKFRS 2

BB BREERF4% 2 EFTIR
Amendments to HKFRS 4

BRMBREERFR

HKFRS 9
BAMBREERE 165
HKFRS 15

BB BREERE15% 2 BT
Amendments to HKFRS 15
a5 (BRRBREREZES)
—RRBE2%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
BBEREA0T 2 BETR
Amendments to HKAS 40
BB BEIREEREN 2 BETR
Amendments to HKFRS 9
BN ImEERE16T
HKFRS 16
a5 (BRRBREREZES)
—RRBE3T
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
ERMBREEREI7H
HKFRS 17
BERUBREENEI0RR
BB ERE8T 2 BETR
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BRRME B RS %R

First Time Adoption of HKFRS

WBRINRZ R 52 DR R E

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

ERERVBBRELNEIRREEN—HEBE BN BREER
FORERIA

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

SEBIA

Financial Instruments

EPatile

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

BEEMBREENEFEE

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

MEZHRBERKE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
BERENE

Transfers of Investment Property

AR ARAENENREL

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

HE

Leases

FEHERH A EE L

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
RiRE4

Insurance Contracts

BREERABENANAECERANEENEIEA
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017 and
have not been early adopted

BT AHE
ZEBRZ
FEABEN
Effective for
annual periods

beginning on or after

—E-\5-A-H
1 January 2018
—Z-\¥-HA-H
1 January 2018

—Z-\¥-HA-H
1 January 2018

—Z-\¥-HA-H
1 January 2018
—E-\5-A-H
1 January 2018
—ZT-N\5-A-H
1 January 2018

—Z-\¥-HA-H
1 January 2018
—Z-N\5-A-H
1 January 2018
“Z-NF¥-A-H
1 January 2019
—Z-N15-HA-H
1 January 2019

“T-NF¥—-A—H
1 January 2019
I
1 January 2021
HE

To be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTEEREBE A

2.1 RBEZE(E)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

Certain new accounting standards
and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for
31 December 2017 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s assessment
of the impact of these new standards,
amendments to existing standards
and interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a
new impairment model for financial
assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

Impact

The Group has undertaken a detailed
assessment of the classification and
measurement of financial assets and
does not consider the new guidance
to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of
its financial assets. The financial
assets currently held by the Group
include equity instruments currently
classified as available-for-sale
financial assets which would
continue to be measured at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”). Accordingly, the
Group does not expect the new
guidance to affect the classification
and measurements of these assets.
However, gains or losses realised on
the sale of financial assets at FVOCI
will no longer be transferred to the
consolidated income statement on
sale, but instead reclassified below
the line from the FVOCI reserve to
retained earnings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 9,
(continued)

“Financial Instruments”

Impact (continued)

For financial liabilities, there are two
classification categories: amortized
cost and fair value through profit or
loss. Where non-derivative financial
liabilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, the changes
in the fair value due to changes
in the liability’s own credit risk are
recognized in other comprehensive
income (“OCI1”), unless such
changes in fair value would create
an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss, in which case, all fair value
movements are recognized in profit
or loss. There is no subsequent
recycling of the amounts in OCI to
profit or loss. For financial liabilities
held for trading (including derivative
financial liabilities), all changes in
fair value are presented in profit or
loss. The Group does not expect a
significant impact on the accounting
for its financial liabilities.

The new hedge accounting rules
will align the accounting for hedging
instruments more closely with the
Group’s risk management practices.
As a general rule, more hedge
relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based
approach. The Group does not
expect a significant impact on
the accounting for its hedging
relationships.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 9,
(continued)

‘Financial Instruments”

Impact (continued)

The new impairment model requires
the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred
credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost,
debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the
Group does not expect significant
increase or decrease in the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces
expanded disclosure requirements
and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature
and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by Group

The adoption of this new standard
is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The impacts on the Group's
financial results and position upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9 are not
expected to be material.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new
standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods
and services and HKAS 11 which
covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for
the adoption.

Impact

The management of the Company
has assessed the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements and does not
expect a significant impact on the
recognition of revenue.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

The adoption of this new standard
is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group intends to adopt
the standard using the modified
retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the
adoption, if any, will be recognised
in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not
be restated.

HKFRS 16, “Leases”

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January
2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial
position, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to
pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the
accounting for Group’s operating
leases. As at the reporting date,
the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of
HK$15,682,000 (Note 37).

The Group has not yet assessed
what other adjustments, if any, are
necessary for example because of
the change in the definition of the
lease term and the different treatment
of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities that will
have to be recognised on adoption
of the new standard and how this
may affect the Group’s profit or loss
and classification of cash flows going
forward.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
existing standards have been issued
but are not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group does
not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are
not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2017.

(a) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(ii)y liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business

(iii) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, and

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity
interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
(i) consideration transferred,

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity, and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (e) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised at
cost in the consolidated balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses
in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.8.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

()

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(f) Changes in ownership interests
(continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
Group’s senior executive management, who
is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, is considered as the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”") that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
including those relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security, and
other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that report;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(¢) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories
and offices. Leasehold land classified as
finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease
commences amortisation from the time when
the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Leasehold land
classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 40 years

Plant, machinery and 510 7 years
equipment

Furniture and fixtures 510 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

1
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note?2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised, in the
consolidated income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold
land and land use rights are accounted for
as operating leases. They are recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the
lease or the land use rights, or when there is
impairment, the impairment is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Investment property principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings held for
long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the companies in the Group.

Investment property comprises land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

Investment property is measured initially at
its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers at least annually. Fair value
is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the external
valuers use alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’'s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes
owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Investments and other assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Investments and other assets (continued)

(a) Classification (continued)

(i)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and other receivables’,
‘amount due from associates’, ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ and ‘short-term
bank deposits’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included
in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other assets (continued)

(b) Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a
non-derivative trading financial asset
out of the held for trading category if
the financial asset is no longer held
for the purpose of selling it in the near
term. Financial assets other than loans
and receivables are permitted to be
reclassified out of the held for trading
category only in rare circumstances
arising from a single event that is
unusual and highly unlikely to recur in
the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held for trading
or available-for-sale categories if the
Group has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of
reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value
as of the reclassification date. Fair value
becomes the new cost or amortised cost
as applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification date are subsequently
made. Effective interest rates for
financial assets reclassified to loans
and receivables are determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows adjust effective
interest rates prospectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Investments and other assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss as gains and losses from
investment securities.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2 FTESHHEBE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

29 RENHMEE (&) 2.9 Investments and other assets (continued)

(d) FHE (&) (d) Measurement (continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss
as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
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the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables category,
the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market
price.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

Assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of
impairment for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss —
is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments
that were recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss in a
subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases
in a subsequent period and the increase
can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in
fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives:

° hedges of a particular risk associated with
the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the
hedging transaction the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions have
been and will continue to be highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of hedged items.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Derivatives and hedging activities

(continued)

The fair values of various derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in Note 29. Movements in the
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity
are shown in Note 34. The full fair value
of a hedging derivative is classified as
a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than 12 months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.

(i) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves
in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss within ‘other
(losses)/gains — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or
loss. The gain or loss relating to the
effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within ‘finance
costs’.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Derivatives and hedging activities

2.13

(continued)
(i) Cash flow hedge (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately
reclassified to profit or loss.

(ii) Derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other (losses)/gains -
net’.

Inventories and stock of completed
properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the
completed properties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade and other payables

2.18

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts
that require the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial
institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee contracts

(continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised
in the financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. The fair
value of a financial guarantee at the time
of signature is zero because all guarantees
are agreed on arm’s length terms and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds
to the value of the guarantee obligation.
No receivable for the future premiums is
recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18, and the best
estimate of the amount required to settle the
guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions
and history of past losses, supplemented by
the judgement of management. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in
the liability relating to guarantees is reported in
the consolidated income statement within other
operating expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of subsidiaries or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the
Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised
in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise
from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control
the reversal of the temporary difference
for associates. Only when there is an
agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising from
the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general
defined contribution pension schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entittements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated by the
Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23

2.24

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:
(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a
group entity has delivered products to the
customer, the customer has accepted the
products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.25

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

(c¢) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are initially
included in liabilities as deferred government
grants and when such property, plant and
equipment are built or purchased, the received
government grants are netted off with cost of
the related assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases

(a)

(b)

As a lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

As a lessor

When assets are leased out under an
operating lease, the asset is included in
the consolidated statement of financial
position based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease on a straight-line basis.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’'s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
(“RMB”), United States dollars
(“US$") and Japanese yen (“JPY”).
These currencies are not the
functional currencies of the Group
entities to which these balances
related. Foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments
denominated in RMB, USD and JPY.

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$, JPY and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group has certain investments
in Mainland China, whose net
assets are denominated in RMB.
The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations on the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

At 31 December 2017, if RMB
had weakened/strengthened by
5% against USD with all other
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
HK$23,882,000 (2016 by 5%:
HK$28,226,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of
USD-denominated trade receivables
and payables and cash and cash
equivalents.

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$133,000
(2016 by 5%: HK$11,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated trade
receivables and payables and cash
and cash equivalents.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 10%
against JPY with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$215,000
(2016 by 10%: HK$105,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation
of JPY-denominated trade payables,
cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that changes in market
interest rates will impact cash flows
arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’s interest
bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group’s
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

(continued)

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest
rate swaps. Generally, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at
floating rates and swaps them into
fixed rates that are lower than those
available if the Group borrowed at
fixed rates directly.

As at 31 December 2017, if
interest rate on bank borrowings
had been 1% higher/lower with all
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have
been HK$20,081,000 (2016:
HK$19,487,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and bank deposits as well as
credit exposures to customers such as
trade receivables, loans to joint ventures,
deposits and other receivables. The credit
risk on cash and bank deposits is limited
because the Group mainly places the
deposits in banks with high credit rating
and management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these
banks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Debtors of the Group may be affected
by the unfavourable economic conditions
and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to
repay the amounts owned. Deteriorating
operating conditions for debtors may also
have an impact on management’s cash
flow forecasts and assessment of the
impairment of receivables. To the extent
that information is available, management
has properly reflected revised estimates
of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

The Group has put in place policies to
ensure that sales of products are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group usually requires customers to settle
the balances with normal credit terms
of 30 to 120 days. As at 31 December
2017, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk given that the top five (2016:
five) customers account for 73% (2016:
79%) of the Group’s total year end
trade receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in respect
of these customers is minimal after
considering the financial position and past
experience with these customers. The
Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls
within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible accounts
receivable has been made.

141



142

Wong'’s International Holdings Limited | 2017 Annual Report

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3

B ERER (F)

3.1

MBRERER (&)

(b)

(c)

EE =R (#E)

EEERKERAEEENM
B RERNERERE
RHNEERR +OEM - &
BEECYZREESRNAIKE
BEETHE  EHLTE
RE%ERRAEITEEM
BEERBKX -

REE SRR

EENRDERREER
RRBERRENEBAE
ERREEERTRE SRR
H-BEFZBEBRRRBBEE
BENRBESWEERMK -

AEBZBHRRSERERHE
NBELHFE ALETE
EEENMEERRITHRE
& UERAEEEHRE M
B AEREERNBESRS
ERETECHMEBNED
R - DA REAS 58 B Ko R R
HESHFE -

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Management considers the credit risk
on loans to joint ventures is minimal
after considering the financial conditions
of these entities. Management has
performed assessment over the
recoverability of these balances and
management does not expect any
losses from non-performance by these
companies.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit
facilities. The Directors aim to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its
compliance with lending covenants and
its relationship with its bankers to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of
the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date)
and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. Balances due within 12
months equal their carrying balances,
as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Specifically, for mortgage loan which
contains a repayment on demand clause
that can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in
which the entity can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates.
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3 MEERERERE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
31 BIREREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) RBELEAR (&) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)
WAL
Maturity Analysis
RERK 15/ 1228 2855 5L L ot
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2and5 Over 5
On demand 1 year years years years Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Consolidated
RZE—RE At 31 December 2016
+ZA=+-H
[ERE SRR Trade payables - 724,438 - - - 724,438
[ExtBALEMEN  Accruals and other payables - 329,375 - - - 329,375
BR
R Ed=NGE Amount due to an associate - 11,622 - - - 11,622
B u%uﬁzmﬂ%m Trust receipt bank loan - 419,719 - - - 419,719
EBERNENEEE  Mortgage loan subject to a
ﬂm)?ﬁ’]ﬁz?%“m repayment on demand clause 24,150 - - - - 24,150
HiiRiTER Other bank borrowings - 218,404 88,461 1,292,544 - 1,599,409
24150 1,703,558 88461 1292544 - 3108713
RZE—+%F At 31 December 2017
+-F=t+-H
ENESER Trade payables - 693,654 - - - 693,654
rg.ﬁﬁ% REMERN  Accruals and other payables - 361,594 - - - 361,594
B
ETREETER Trust receipt bank loan = 289,807 = = = 289,807
EERERBER Mortgage loan subject to a
FXAEBER repayment on demand clause 17,250 = = = = 17,250
ERITER Other bank borrowings - 386,530 93,360 1,326,200 - 1,806,090
17,250 1,731,585 93,360 1,326,200 - 3,168,395
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c¢) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the
maturity analysis of mortgage loan with
a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreement. The amounts
include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the ‘on demand’ time
band in the maturity analysis contained
above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such mortgage loan will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.

HBALH - BERERREERINEZRER  RERCERY:
Maturity Analysis - Mortgage loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments:

10 E 2F5 L KTRRSE
REXK 15/ BAHR2EF BAHR5E 5L L RERE
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but Total
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows
BETL BT BETTL BT BETT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ—RF 31 December 2016 - 7,193 7,097 10,464 - 24,754
+-A=+-H
RZB—+F 31 December 2017 - 7,132 7,018 3,467 - 17,617

t=A=t-8
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debit.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of net
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less short-term
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s net gearing ratio was 33% (2016
30%) as at 31 December 2017. The increase
in net gearing ratio was due to the decrease
in short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents that have been used for the
Group’s capital expenditure and payment of
income tax.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of the following financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

e Trade and other receivables
e  Short-term bank deposits

e Cash and cash equivalents
e Trade and other payables

e  Bank borrowings

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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3 BEBRERER(E)

3.3

D REEMAE (F)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

TREINAEBR _-_Z—XF The following table presents the Group's
+—A=+t—"HE®EAABEFE assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
ZEERBE- value at 31 December 2016.
FAR Fo FE3 4R
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BETF T BT T BETF T
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
BE Assets
Al HE Available-for-sale
SEEE  financial assets 1,153 - - 1,153
aE Liabilities
TSR Derivative financial
TE instruments - 234 - 234

TRENAEER T -1 F
TZA=+—BRAAEBEFE
ZEENARE-

The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2017.

F1R 28K EIW HE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
Al HE Available-for-sale
TREE financial assets 689 - 2,500 3,189
aE Liabilities
TSR Derivative financial
TA instruments - 4,221 - 4,221

HAN - B - B2k MEI 2
W o

I - R ERDILEE S -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the period.

There were no other changes in valuation
techniques during the period.
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3

B EREE (F)

3.3

D REEMAE ()

(a)

(b)

F1REMIA

EERMSEENSMITA
ZRAABEREHREAW
MIBMEF R o HZREA]
FEREHERS A &
B TEERRE
AR %5 ok BE B B 1T - sk
ERERBER LT HIZA
FRAEITZMERS @
BB AERTS - K&
ERFENCRMEENT SR
BARENERE %FIAH
ST AEIR -

E2REWM T A

VIERBRTIZEENES B
TE GRS IMTET ) H
NABEDNERBEERDE
EeoRELERLDEERM
ARG ZABEMSHRE
I AT BE R D KRR B BB A T
Bt M TARAEEZE
MARER2EI B
Az TR AE24 -

FoRTEEM T ABRERNE
RFH - -HEArBEDFEAM
BERGETE ZSHERD
BREFRAURBZABEET
5 EE - WA BER DK TR
ERBTEME -

3

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation technigues maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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3 HBKERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
3.3 AREEME (E) 3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(c) #3KEMIA (c) Financial instruments in level 3
W— A ZIHEARNSE8WIE If one or more of the significant inputs is
ERAIBEMSEE AT not based on observable market data, the
BEr NS - instrument is included in level 3.
TREVIWNHE_ZT—+FR The following table presents the changes
—E-RE+ZHA=+—H in level 3 instruments for the year ended
IFEFEIMIAES - 31 December 2017 and 2016.
—E— & —ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEER Opening balance = -
WA HESREE Acquisition of available-for-sale
financial assets 2,500 -
FRER Closing balance 2,500 -
4 E KRG RAE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS
EEr KA BB ET S UERBEL Estimates and judgements are continually
BREMEZ  BREERESRBRAEE evaluated and are based on historical experience
BARKREHMNESIETER - and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

REBBARRIEL B RERE - EED The Group makes estimates and assumptions
SRR ERERSHERRMERE concerning the future. The resulting accounting
RTE - YT -—MRFEFEERRAR estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
EREEHREERENEAFELEARA the related actual results. The estimates and
BT RERFREHN T - assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.
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4 BEAREFHEE RHE (&)

(a)

(b)

MR BERRBZEAFR

$%@ BEETEEDE K&

R H) AT E A F R EARR YT
%ﬁi ZAE IR BEREEE
RMgE2ME BB RJXEER
ERFERABELREL - Wk
AERPRERNGBTZFR &
BESREMTES L  HEHEX
WORE ZEA L E 2 BIMBE K
FEBMEEE BREHEFHK
EﬁﬁﬁE%%@TH°m%ﬁ
A REE AT EF LR E
lﬁ%ﬁ*X%ﬁZ%%ﬁiﬁ
P -

FEMEEZRE

A E R EFRBRE(CRTIE
éﬁﬁ&Z%ﬁ@T%ﬂﬁw

B - RIJZE {F R (E & T o AT R [E
ERNOKBEREEFELTS
HEMEE ZFETEAE
FA B R fA T
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines
the estimated useful lives, and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.
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4 BEAREFHEE RHE (&)

(b) FEMEEZRE (&)

EEEBRAAGEERTRE L
HRERG: (\REEBATERTR
BREEEBEMNEEIRLEZE
fF 5 (i) AT W [ 3R IR (BN % 5 75 45
BEREEMMG 2R EERE
ERAHARR S REFHRE (A
ReERE)) RRERZAEE
ZEREE  RIHRERRERE
BARERAEENEEZRE &
EELERMEEMNEXARZER
TRETR

MEREFEREZBRAE (2
ERGRBEMARA AR
S REBR) - REPEAEN
B AN FRE  BHPEA
L DEDVIT T TR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

(continued)

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.
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4 EBEARESETETRHE (&) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) REWMERzZAAEE

(c) Fair value of investment properties

REME2HEDRERENE
A2 2 MM H [ EEEER &
T-ARAAEBYFHAERM
B REEEZ EFRIRN
B BREETERR

() REEMSARZAIELER

(i) RERBEHEOZHSKA
¥ E s AEAEEE R WAG
TR -

"EWE 2 ARBENERME
RIMEFE - HEMBRERHEBER
MfsE164 & o

AERERRANBRRNEE
B A RE e B IR BB BN
ROEEEAFLEAHENE
RERR

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed
semi-annually by qualified valuers by
considering the information from a variety of
sources including but not limited to:

(i) comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market; and

(ii) rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due provision for any
reversionary income potential.

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgement and assumptions
have been disclosed in Note 16.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.
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4 BEARSFHEERHE

(d) FEZfhsTEE

(e)

AEBERBHFEANERREE
R BT EMORE R #RF

B MASFMHRBERB(CBTE
BRAl AR - AlE i EFEEM

WAE A BR o 385! OB (B B 78 8
HIET R b o M EBERSE
HErER ZERBTEFER
{8 R ff 51 2 8B a0 15 8 MU
@ -

J& W BR TR 2 fl 5T ORL{E

RS B R W B R AT M = A2
B 2 7 h - SRR SRR E
BE - HELEFHABRNER
TR REERF] RE ORI - A& L
& PR SR A L B o S8R PR U B
TR B 78 1 H B M s EE o TR
HMEBEAREHIER  ZFE
BT ERURR ZREE M
R SKREBBEEN Mt #E
FENER -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Estimated provision for inventories

(e)

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. Provisions
are applied to receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of impairment of receivables
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivable is recognised in
the years in which such estimates have been
changed.
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4 BEAREFHEE RHE (&)

(f)

Fit 18 Bl IR FiE T 1§ 5%

R BN % (6 R A HE [ B SR A
B -NREETEMAEHEERR
AEHEBERFE - HEEKBRE
TEZRRXZAFEEEZEFR
DEREBEA R TR AEER
BT R S AGMERIN IR M
REABRBEREE ZEE -
BFRFEE &R MBEREN S
ABRREER  ZEBRBTEE
EABEEE e R AET
PRIRRAE

e I B S E AT RE R R R
ERBA BRG] EREEERK
MIEEER 2 AR T R
ETHREEZEZELERBEEENR
HMIAEE - EEMBHERBER
SHACEGRNELE R M L
BRZEEHREREERERIE
EFEHAEEERERSER
AzHm=E(FEP) EBEE - HB R
BRARREGFTER  ZEBEH
FEMAEHHRRZIBETEHEER
ENMERHZER -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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7 AP E R

AEBZERTREEEHREATE
LERRE([XTBL2ERKE]) - K
SES LA REFRBEI DA
BMATETRERS | D& EA
EBROMBZER R _FT—RFE+ =
A=+—HzkBOMERDEH D
BoMAROHOMERKEZZ
5l o NEE BRI AW EL SR

B R2ERE ([EMS])
—RBEMSEXRENRSIHEFEM °

MEKRE
—YEBE - HEMHEE -

TRLERRECTHEHNARERRN
HAEHE - AFHERBRDEER ©
TREERRERED ARG ZFEF
HEEDFRR - T EEERIHARA
BREMBAZEED B AR « Hil (&
B) /Wam—FE MEKA BEK
A EEEERR (BER) MERMR
GRS  ETBREE R KRS
X MEBEERRERMBZEMBER
WEEAVBERERAET A —BE

=
E-°

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”). The Group has changed the composition
of the reportable segments by the inclusion of
the activities of the previous “Original Design
and Manufacturing” segment in the “Electronic
Manufacturing Service” segment. The comparative
segment information as at 31 December 2016 has
been reclassified to align with the presentation
of the latest segment information disclosure. The
Group is currently organised into two operating
divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”)
— manufacture and distribution of electronic
products for EMS customers.

Property Investment
— development, sale and lease of properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other (losses)/
gains — net, finance income, finance costs, share
of (loss)/profit of an associate and income tax
expense but excludes corporate and unallocated
expenses. Other information provided to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.
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DEBER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
LS
EMSEBFI RELM W
Property
EMS investment
division division Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE-Z—+%+=H Forthe year ended 31
=E+—HLEE December 2017
oMK External revenue 3,760,799 56,744 3,817,543
DEREAE Segment results 211,362 370,562 581,924
EREHEST T Depreciation and amortisation
charges 44,285 17 44,302
JE1E & & b EFHE Share of profits of joint ventures - 232,079 232,079
WEMELAAREBEES Change in fair value of
investment properties - 99,776 99,776
BARRX Capital expenditure 99,364 289 99,653
BERTEEDLE Loans to joint ventures - - -
L
EMSEFFS & EP ks
Property
EMS investment
division division Total
BB T BB T BT T
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
HE—_Z—"F+=F Forthe year ended 31
—t+—BILFE December 2016
RNl e External revenue 3,513,500 15,874 3,529,374
D EBEE Segment results 242,294 172,170 414,464
EREHET T Depreciation and amortisation
charges 38,916 - 38,916
JEAEE & B EFHE Share of profits of joint ventures - 165,389 165,389
WEMENABEES Change in fair value of
investment properties - 551 551
BARFEX Capital expenditure 53,453 - 53,453
ERTEERLE Loans to joint ventures - 131,641 131,641
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5

2 EBE R () 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
L/ES
EMSEB P RE B FER
Property
EMS investment
division division Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R-B—+HF+=AH As at 31 December 2017
=+—H
NEEE Segment assets 2,648,660 2,741,063 5,389,723
EEMENER Interests in joint ventures - 1,183,905 1,183,905
ME2|MOIMEEME  Total reportable segment
assets 2,648,660 3,924,968 6,573,628
LES
EMSHS T & EY BE
Property
EMS investment
division division Total
BT T BB T BT T
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
R-ZE—RF+=A As at 31 December 2016
=+—H
DEEE Segment assets 2,537,186 2,663,054 5,200,240
BEDENER Interests in joint ventures - 951,826 951,826
A2 EELRTE  Total reportable segment assets 2,537,186 3,614,880 6,152,066

SHEEEITRENE « BERRME -
REYE  RELHRIERE - A
BOENES  BRHRS  FE B
ERWEES - ERESER - BNR
B Te REMBYEES - HETRE
SR EERTFRRBESRRSS
BY  ETREMEATNRE - A
HESRARE RITAHSRAE - B
G ARRERCERKSREE -

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, leasehold
land and land use rights, interests in joint ventures,
restricted cash, inventories, stock of completed
properties, trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, current income
tax receivable, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, but exclude investments
in associates, available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred income tax assets, amounts due from
associates and corporate and unallocated assets.
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5 Z2HER (F) 5

QIEE S-S BERAEANEZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

A reconciliation of reportable segment results to

HERWT profit before income tax is provided as follows:
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
E2HRDDEER Reportable segment results 581,924 414,464
H A U A Other income 9,537 10,814
Hub (F18) Wzs— %% Other (losses)/gains — net (20,904) 133,995
BB RN — F Finance costs — net (33,146) (14,232)
FEAEES 2 A R) (&18) /FE Share of (loss)/profit of an associate (1,355) 614
PERRD X Corporate and unallocated expenses (22,866) (27,173)
R BT 18 ¥ A0 7 8 Profit before income tax 513,190 518,482

AL WS HAERSEE 2 HHRWT

Reportable segments assets are reconciled to total

assets as follows:

— —E-RF

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$' 000

2 BEE Reportable segment assets 6,573,628 6,152,066

BE N AR E Investments in associates 30,495 33,796

AHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 3,189 1,153

EEMSMEE Deferred income tax assets 15,758 12,656

JiE Uk B 2 N B FRIE Amounts due from associates 2,009 9

TCEMKIHEE Corporate and unallocated assets 94,884 107,887
REMBKRRRAWBLEE Total assets per consolidated statement

of financial position 6,719,963 6,307,567
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5 2®MEHR(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HMEBEBARIBE 2HERAT - Reconciliations of other material items are as
follows:

—E—+tHF —E-RF
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

TEREHEZH Depreciation and amortisation charges
— A 2WHHBRE — Reportable segment total 44,302 38,916
—NAlfRE — Corporate headquarters 2,404 2,373
46,706 41,289

=N Capital expenditure

— A 2RO B — Reportable segment total 99,653 53,453
— R A4 - Corporate headquarters - 602
99,653 54,055

RARRBFREZM - LT RAEEIR

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of

HEmHE D 2 WEm T (RHAESE the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
2 HIBRTE) is determined by the destination of the invoices
billed, is as follows:

S G

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

1E =M North America 889,165 707,054
TN (FBREES) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,653,991 1,568,569
B M Europe 609,374 568,980
BA Hong Kong 665,013 684,771
3,817,543 3,529,374
HE_Z—+ttF+-_A=+—H81 For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenues
FE - 475%1,215,587,0005C (= of approximately HK$1,215,587,000 (2016:

— N B #1,052,543,0007T) B
#£620,673,0007T (ZZF — /N F : B
777,152,0007T) M & #417,232,0007C
(ZZ—RF : #¥453,528,0007T) 2

WD RIRESRINEDEP - ZEEP
BOAREEKEEZ10%5A F - ZEI

3 AEMSHESPTE A et

HK$1,052,543,000), HK$620,673,000 (2016:
HK$777,152,000) and HK$417,232,000 (2016:
HK$453,528,000) were derived from the top 3
external customers respectively. These customers
individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the
EMS division.
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5 7HER(E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
UTAAREBERMETISE H 2 3ER Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
FEEN geographical market is as follows:

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

BT BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

1k &M North America 23 23
DM (FREES) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 318,401 271,884
B Europe 31 31
B Hong Kong 3,644,819 2,919,859
3,963,274 3,191,797
ERBEERTEDE  MENMKE & Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
B  E L R T E AR - B equipment, investment properties, leasehold land
NAaMEE - 2 ERNMER - JHE and land use rights, investments in associates,
ESMEE -G hNEMEKEGFLS interests in joint ventures, available-for-sale
[R&IIRE - MM TEIRIELEF SR EE financial assets, deposits and other receivables
and restricted cash. They exclude deferred income

tax assets.

6 HflA 6 OTHER INCOME

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

B8RS 8 Bh Government grant 443 2,760
Hi Others 9,094 8,054

9,537 10,814
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BERAFAX (BREEMHE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS)

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

TE& e 2UK Wages, salaries, allowances and other
E iR termination benefits 430,702 383,377

RRE AR Pension costs

— REH-KRETE - defined contribution schemes 43,412 41,014
474,114 424,391

AEERBEMAGEREBRIAES
MAEEFE ([REEFTE]) - A&
SEEICEEHASEEEDFRA -
NEEFABAZTABE - BRELAES
ia AEBENKEEETADAIRETE
EHHR @B AEEHBARA (&
REBRBELESEENES) 25% °
AEEREE ZHA LR AT ABE
1,500 (ZF—RF : § HEA1,500
TT) c R EIABEEETES -

REARAMB(THE]DKEARZ
BE AT BEBFRL 2 EREN S

BEHTENBARAETEABEZRE
RS - RIBEBBUTER  BE
AERRERRE 2 ARG MREF
HEtE 2 RKE - FEIBNARRINE
B ZiRKE

FAGZERBREE ZER AL B
#£43,412,000C (ZZE — RN F : B
41,014,00070) IE A S B A B FE
M ETEIEMA 2B -

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, each of the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2016: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members of
retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government.

The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in
the PRC. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic
salaries on retirement and their length of service
in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for
the pension liability to the retired staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$43,412,000 (2016:
HK$41,014,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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8 PMKRATBHAFE 8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
BRAGEBEAABEITNT - Profit before income tax is analysed as follows:
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ME - BENLEZEZIE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 46,116 40,693
FAETH R EHE A2 Amortisation on leasehold land and
5y land use right 590 596
WEREHEST N Depreciation and amortisation charges 46,706 41,289
% ELED Bl & Auditor’s remuneration 3,141 3,614
THREFZ Operating lease rental in respect of
KEHERS land and buildings 12,166 11,678
NHEEEME Utility expenses 25,868 26,871
B g Transportation 36,577 30,043
2R KERER Chemicals and consumables 33,910 29,524
H A Others 93,659 84,225
HipgE& > Otheroperating expenses 205,321 185,955
e #iEkEMmgE Total depreciation, amortisation and
S B other operating expenses 252,027 227,244
9 Huin(FE) WEHE — B8 9 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET
—E—+tF —ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ERTE 5 R HEA Write-back of trade and other payables 753 2,001
& {<F B SR 8 1B
BE A ME 2 Write-back of trade receivables previously
FEWE 5 IR written-off - 281
TRITEWE Gains/(losses) on financial instrument — net
(EB8) — F8
— REIR - Unrealised 114 497
— BE#IR - Realised (319) (504)
HEWE  WER Gains on disposals of property, plant and
Bz W equipment 490 1,411
FE (B518) Uzs — F58 Exchange (losses)/gains — net (21,478) 29,064
At EeREERE Impairment on available-for-sale financial
(fiFEE21) assets (Note 21) (464) (11,793)
HEMHEELREE 2 Gain on disposal of nil-paid rights shares
RO SR AR R AR 1) W 2= of an available-for-sale financial asset - 789
EFHEARENEZIE  Gain on re-measurement of a joint venture
(PF5E38) (Note 38) - 112,249

(20,904) 133,995
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= H
10 EERSAEEEZME 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM S (a) Directors’ emoluments
REBEE_Z—+F+_HA=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IEFEZEEMEHIIET - ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:
AEBALT
EEG) !
bROSHRM
AfpEA EHEAHE AEXESRE AHESRE
He B Bigkd EERY itReE R zBHEEGME PAGELDUE ane
Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect of
Director's other
services in
connection with
the management
Employer's  Remuneration paid of the affairs of
Estimated contribution or receivable in the Company or
money value of toaretirement respect of accepting its subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries  Discretionary bonus  Housing allowance other benefits benefit scheme  office as Director undertaking emoluments
BETR BT TR ¥R YT R BETR BRI BETR
HKS'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS' 000
i3 Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(M) (Note) 60 4,026 2,074 - - - - - 6,160
I8E Wong Yin Man, Ada 60 2,119 1,694 - - 18 - - 4,091
R1E Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 60 718 180 - - - - - 958
BRE Wan Man Keung 60 2,401 1,894 = = = = = 4,355
EXIE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 60 1,625 300 - - 18 - - 2,003
5% Li Ka Cheung, Eric 140 - - - - - - - 140
RER Yu Sun Say 140 - - - - - - - 140
E9Y ] Alfred Doneld Yap 140 - - - - - - - 140
FEl Cheung Chi Chiu, David 140 - - - - - - 140
28 Total 860 10,889 6,342 - - 3 - - 18,127
REBEEZ-_T—RF+_HA=1—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IEFEZEEMEHIIWT - ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:
HEEALT
SENBAE
LENERRM
Aoz RiRRAE FERESRE AfpESRE
#e 2 Bl EERE faitReE JEIHR ZENZEMHE  ZERTENEE FUES
Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of Director's
other services in
connection with
R n paid the
Employer's orreceivable — of the affairs of the
Estimated contribution in respect Company or
money value of toaretirement  of accepting office its subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries  Discretionary bonus ~ Housing allowance other benefits benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
Lo 8T BETT YT BT Lo A%t AETr BETT
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
T8K Wong Chung Met, Ben
() (Note) 60 3,909 1990 - - 16 - - 5975
188 Wong Yin Man, Ada 60 1869 1810 - - 18 - - 3757
RiE Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 60 697 180 - - - - - 97
R Wan Man Keung 60 2375 1810 - - 15 - - 4260
EXIE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 60 1323 30 - - 18 - - 1,701
35H Li Ka Cheung, Fric 140 - - - - - - - 140
RER Yu Sun Say 140 - - - - - - - 140
X% Alfred Donald Yap 140 - - - - - - - 140
frod Cheung Chi Chiu, David 140 - - - - - - - 140
it Total 860 10,173 6,090 - - 67 - - 17,190
B 5T Note:
FTEREEBARBITHAH - WA Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chief Executive Officer
TR H N 3 SME I #E 5R - of the Company, no separate disclosure in respect of the

remuneration of the CEO has been made.
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(e)

EEM= (&)

HE-T—tFR-T-~F
+oASH—ALLFE BEE
FHRAAERREDMNS -

EERAEFN

i EAEFRABIRBE =
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=t—RLEFERLA -

ESRUERBER

A 47 4 0] 2 4K 1L PR 7% 9 AR B
EoE—LER-F—AFt
B=+—BLFEAZH -

REREZERBEOE=FFH
HARE

RBEE_ZT—tER_FT—R~F
+TZA=Z+—BLEFER AR
BIWERREEERBFAE=
SATAERAAE o

MEE - XREESEFEE
ABBRZEESNHRETR
RENER - BEERINEMR
ZHER

REBEE-_Z—tEtFR-_FT—RF
TZA=Z+-BLFEFHERK
FREFEH TERMESE X
ZEEREHTNEAERRZE
EFENEEIREREMEN
BEFMELHEMR S -
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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10 EXENREREEE M= ()

(f)

(9)

EERNRS REREHNHH
EXER

REBEEZ_T—+tFR_FT—AF
T A=+ —HRUEFEFLERFL
FRNEAER NARWER YL
BIAEBEEMARRESE
FREETERDRSERNERZD
BEERH  THEIEH -

TEEREME AL

FA - AEBREZESSHME A
T BENE(ZE—XRF: M@
FEFE REZHEEHNLEX
2izom - BT —R(ZT—R
Fr—R) AL ZENFBZ S
T

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
4 (2016: 4) Directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 1 (2016:
1) individual are as follows:

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e hHMER Salaries and other benefits 1,254 1,230
TE4T Bonus - -
BIREKA — RER-RFE Pension costs — defined
contribution schemes - -
1,254 1,230
AE
Number of individual
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
BN < &3 (& Emolument band
78 #£1,000,001 7T — 7 #1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1

FAC-AEEHREINMES TE
E o ERRIIBEIFMAKREEL
PR SR B 18 2 2R o 1 /A Bl Bk
e -

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.
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10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(h) Senior management’s (excluding
Directors) emoluments by band

The emoluments of senior management
(excluding Directors) fell within the following

bands:
A
Number of individuals
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
< & & Emolument bands
78 #500,0017T — #%1,000,0007T HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 1 1
75 #1,000,0017C — A ¥1,500,0007C HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 2 4
BERAR — FEE 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET
—E—+& —E—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R E WA Finance income
BOFRZMEMA  Interestincome on bank deposits 9426 6422
ER= DN Finance costs
RITBEFMZMEFMX  Interest expenses on bank borrowings ¢ (42,572) (20,654)
BEKA — FE Finance costs — net (33,146) (14,232)

FiiEBimx<

EANESHEMELEGREREBSZMHE
SRR A R E16.5% (ZF — X
F 16.5%) sHIREHE -

RNEERBEAHHE R R EZBNFTH
TEMGH(EMGHD  BEA
EErFE 225% (= —/RF : 25%) -
ARG 22 EKBRRESR (&
N)BERAB ([ZEREMN ) BRI ES
BHMNEF AR E  IZX%15%
BELEMSHE BEE-_T—+tF
+=—A=+—8-

12

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong
Kong.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”")
at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the estimated
profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
Limited (*“WTSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
rate of 15% under the New and High Technology
Enterprises status till 31 December 2017.
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12 FrEHE X< (F) 12
APABR A NSRS SR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

—E—+HF —FT—R

2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

EHREM Current income tax
— BEMED - Hong Kong profits tax 11,713 (973)
— N IB — Overseas taxation 23,877 53,283
BT FEBEEE Over-provision in prior years (1,246) (2,042)
EIEFTS R (M5E22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) (1,061) (11)
33,283 50,257

BREAARE BN A AEZ B IEA BIR
REAHERNBERIMEFIHR
KFFHmERSEMT

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

o =
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B BT 15 35 A K Profit before income tax 513,190 518,482
RERRSHAE 2 Tax calculated at the domestic tax rates
NI EEE 2 BIE applicable to profits in the respective
places 87,218 93,091
DERBENTRAENME Tax effects of associate and joint ventures’
BRBREEIMGTE results reported, net of tax (38,069) (27,390)
TR HE X Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3,383 6,623
HERB WA Income not subject to tax (18,223) (20,235)

WEBERELEMSHEER Tax losses and other temporary differences
TRIEEELHEMEEEZRE  for which no deferred income tax asset
was recognised 220 210

BEFEBBEEE Over — provision in prior years (1,246) (2,042)
FriSHif X Income tax expense 33,283 50,257

BERMEFEHHEERE17% (ZT—RF:
18%) °

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17%
(2016: 18%).
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13 KRB

14

—E—LER T -XFENHNEKRE
9 Bl A #) 7B ¥ 43,063,000 T (B i B #
0.097T) N 7 35,887,000 (& I /&
#£0.0757T) ° IR AR A EERE R
FRELEZRERZBEE-_ZT—tF
TZA=T—RLEFEREREAER
75 10.0357T © & A E 16,747,000
TC o ERMBMERI ERRERERZ
REARR B o
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13 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2017 and 2016 were
approximately HK$43,063,000 (HK$0.09 per
share) and HK$35,887,000 (HK$0.075 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2017 of HK$0.035 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$16,747,000, will be proposed at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. These
financial statements do not reflect this final dividend

payable.
—E—tF  ZB-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
Bl E —ERER0.047T  Interim dividend paid — HK$0.04
(ZZ—"%F : B%0.037T) (2016: HK$0.03) per share 19,139 14,355
R R EAAR B — B R A #0.0357T Proposed final dividend — HK$0.035
(ZE—R%F : B10.057T) (2016: HK$0.05) per share 16,747 23,924
35,886 38,279
BRER 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) EF (a) Basic
EREXRBATERNRBHEES A Basic earnings per share is calculated by
AN BERAFANEETEBR dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
ZINEFHHEEE - Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
—E—+tF —ZE—R
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
RAEHEA ANEEFHE Profit attributable to owners of the
(B¥TT) Company (HK$’000) 479,907 468,225
BETE B 2 T8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(&) shares in issue (in thousands) 478,484 478,484
BRARBF (BT Basic earnings per share (HK$) 1.00 0.98
(b) #% (b) Diluted

MELMEFEEZRERETA
Mo ERmEFEASEEEZ
BEL B -

No diluted earnings per share is presented
for both years because there is no dilutive
potential ordinary shares outstanding
throughout both years.
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15 ¥ - BERRE 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
THRETF Rk#E#E HRREE "E CH
Plant,
machinery
Land and and Furniture Motor
buildings  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total

ARTr  ARTr  ARTr  ARTT AR
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R-ZE-x§-A-H At 1 January 2016

A B Cost 192,742 756,001 144,238 10,497 1,103,478
ZEAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (42,240) (661,699) (111,890) (7,412) (823,241)
RH3E Net book amount 150,502 94,302 32,348 3,085 280,237
HE-Z-—AF Year ended 31 December 2016
t-A=+-BIEE
HRHEFE Opening net book amount 150,502 94,302 32,348 3,085 280,237
RE Additions - 50,217 1,260 2,578 54,055
& Disposals - (290) - - (290)
e Depreciation (7,005) (26,843) (4,685) (2,160) (40,693)
ERBKEER Currency translation differences (2,691) (8,546) (27) (45) (11,309)
HRREFE Closing net book amount 140,806 108,840 28,896 3,458 282,000
RZZF—7F+= A =+—H At 31 December 2016
KAE Cost 188,227 760,608 144,737 11,700 1,105,272
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (47.421)  (651,768)  (115,841) (8,242)  (823,272)
FHFE Net book amount 140,806 108,840 28,896 3,458 282,000
THRETF REE BRREE HE Bt
Plant,
machinery
Land and and Furniture Motor
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total

A®Tr BRI E®Tr BRI BRIx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS 000

R-E-tE-A-H At 1 January 2017

HYREEE Opening net book amount 140,806 108,840 28,896 3,458 282,000

NE Additions - 97,999 505 1,149 99,653

& Disposals (43) (1,036) - (18) (1,097)

e Depreciation (5562)  (34,749) (4,463) (1,342)  (46,116)

EEREER Currency translation differences 2,898 10,911 52 47 13,908

HRREFE Closing net book amount 138,099 181,965 24,990 3,294 348,348
R=ZB—t%+=A=1+—H At31 December 2017

RAME Cost 193,289 852,722 145,385 12,641 1,204,037

ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment (55,190) (670,757) (120,395) (9,347) (855,689)

REFE Net book amount 138,099 181,965 24,990 3,294 348,348
RZZE—tF+_A=+—08 5Tk As at 31 December 2017, certain bank borrowings
TEX EE BR H {8 & %) 78 86,139,000 are secured on land and buildings with a carrying
7T (ZF — /X4 : B %88,377,0007T) amount of approximately HK$86,139,000 (2016:
Z T MR FEEM (532) - HK$88,377,000) (Note 32).
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16 REYE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

Wn—H—H At 1 January 1,891,536 27,471
NE Addition - 1,855,150
A BEYRE Fair value gains 99,776 551

REEMKRKBE TN Transfer from stock of completed properties

mMEGFEED (M:24) upon commencement of lease (Note 24) 362,595 9,500
BEHBRE=ZSE Currency translation differences 1,344 (1,136)
R+Z—A=+—H At 31 December 2,355,251 1,891,536

AEBEREMFEARIIREYEE
SIR10ES0F 2 FHIEAOFE -

R-_ZFE—+&F+_-_A=+—H"
ETROTEZFBAEEBEANB
2,324,613,000C (ZZE —XF : B
1,865,000,0007T) 2 1% & ¥ % 1E K 7
(Mf3E32) ©

EXFRREYMEEER

The Group’s interest in investment properties at
their net book values are on medium-term leases of
10 to 50 years.

As at 31 December 2017, certain bank borrowings
are secured on investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,324,613,000 (2016: HK$1,865,000,000) (Note
32).

Value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEBME Properties in Hong Kong 2,333,013 1,872,150
BEABEINDZE Properties outside Hong Kong 22,238 19,386
2,355,251 1,891,536
AEBEZHEBRE Valuation processes of the Group

KREMEBSFRAMMBEEEE
HE REVER_ZT—tF+_H
=t+—HZREEHBLAEMTES
BERFEBERARET  HABRENE
MEeERGE - REFEMBRSEE
I35 ZEREMEZAAEE
AAEEMRIIFEBMT -

The investment properties are valued annually on
an open market value basis. The valuations of the
investment properties at 31 December 2017 were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Roma Appraisals Limited, who is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The fair
value measurement information for these investment
properties in accordance with HKFRS 13 is given
below.
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16 REWZE (&)
rEEzHERRE (H)

SR8 2 B 75 B B B 7S R AR E
THREMFEHE HRAEEEERE
woMBEAKE 2HRER  BEERZ
EFFEREEERNERELFED

TAA Ny
ﬁr_rnfﬁi IN°

EEEREZEGNSE®RE AEENS®
T MEIRAABEZIE - 1ER
Az — B - ZERIRERE - AR
BArBEZSH 2EH-

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management and
the team at least once bi-annually, in line with the
Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that explains
the reasons for the fair value movements.

AREETE
Fair value measurements
HEEER BEXRHM BAEE
ERMEZHE BEMBSH BEZH
(SB14%) (8B24%) (5B3#%)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BET T BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
EROAEETE Recurring fair value
measurements
R-ZE—+F As at 31 December 2017 - - 2,355,251
+=ZA=+-—-8
RZF—RF As at 31 December 2016 - - 1,891,536
+-—A=+—8”
FRA - BIR FoR R FEIR 2B E There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
B o 3 during the year.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

REYE
Investment properties
5% EFHBEN et
Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BETT BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R=-ZZF—+tF—H—H At1January 2017 1,872,150 19,386 1,891,536
RIEERBBEHS TR Transfer from stock of
MEFEEY completed properties upon
commencement of lease 362,595 - 362,595
DARAEEKS Fair value gains 98,268 1,508 99,776
EMBREEE Currency translation
differences - 1,344 1,344
R=ZZF—+t&FE+=A At 31 December 2017 2,333,013 22,238 2,355,251
=+—H
FRAAXABEWIRMAE  Total unrealised gains for
(MERFIFEE the year included in the
SFABEWRBRA consolidated income
[REVMEIAEE statement for assets held
2 ET) at the end of the year,
under ‘Change in fair value
of investment properties’ 98,268 1,508 99,776
RZZE—R"F—H—H At1January 2016 7,300 20,171 27,471
NE Addition 1,855,150 - 1,855,150
R ERAF AT T, Transfer from stock of
S E AN completed properties upon
commencement of lease 9,500 - 9,500
N EERE Fair value gains 200 351 551
BE¥mEER Currency translation differences - (1,136) (1,136)
RZZE—RF+=A At 31 December 2016 1,872,150 19,386 1,891,536
=+—H
FRARBHWZEMEE  Total unrealised gains for
(E‘fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ? the year included in the
FFAGRERTRA consolidated income statement
[EEWMERAREE for assets held at the end of
BEET) the year, under ‘Change in fair
value of investment properties’ 200 351 551

EXKEENEZAABECERAER
HEOAGE  EFEEANREFLAR
BB EYE - X2EREHH AT
BZALEBHERZER R (0E
FE) At MEYOFWA 2 ER(EEZE -

Fair values of completed investment properties
have been valued by the direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market and
also considered the basis of capitalisation of the
net income receivable, if necessary.
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16 REW= (&)

ERAERELIEESYFNEQINE
1B (8B34%) (&)

fMESDRREEARAHAMSLE
WE - MABBRELHRREH - &R
HE - 520X  ERBRIEMEL
R AMRTTBRME Z(EE - 1o
HERTEARENEEIXFELE
REMEEEELEREERE - TL
B —ABHEXRETE BRI
FYREHITM -

FAHERDLEZS) -

AEBRBGCEHERTLIREYWE - ]
W AEBEIF WHIBREEAIZREN
PELIGHER - BRAHEMER S K
AEE - BEZFT—tF+ZA=1—
HIEFE REWEZHSRARLRE
#4575 ¥56,744,0000T (ZZE— /R &F ¢
75 #15,874,0007T) - MAHABEER X
#) A 815,145,000 (—ZE— /< F -
754 675,0007T) ©

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 2 to
3 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$56,744,000 (2016:
HK$15,874,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$15,145,000 (2016:
HK$4,675,000).
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17 #HEL W R T HEHE

REERHEE T f 1 w2

17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land

mIETEMNEERERE  BE2EEF use rights represent prepaid operating lease

BOTHT : payments and their net book values are analysed
as follows:

—ZT—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

n—H—H At 1 January 17,720 19,367

Fi=! Amortisation (590) (596)

ERmE = Currency translation differences 1,168 (1,051)

R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 18,298 17,720

AEERREEFEARZEE LM
K At 2 s B BRI

The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land
use rights at their net book values are on medium

Z10E50F 2 R EIFHE term leases between 10 to 50 years located outside
Hong Kong.
18 & NTWNEE 18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
—E—+tHF —E—RF
2017 2016
BT T B’ T T
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BELANREA Investments in associates
- BIEEEFE — Share of net assets 30,495 33,796
Movements in share of net assets is as follows:
EEEEFEEHHT
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
BT T TS F T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
n—H—H At 1 January 33,796 -
2 hn (B 5E) Addition (Note) - 33,182
% 2 Dividend (2,000) -
FETS% 5 N7 (E518) /F|B Share of (loss)/profit of an associate (1,355) 614
%Tﬁﬁ%g Currency translation differences 54 -
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 30,495 33,796
B 5E Note:
RZEBE-RENAZ+TZH KAEBEFTL— On 22 August 2016, the Group entered into a share purchase

1 B& 1\ % B % #% LA B8 ESemk International
Enterprises Limited ([ Semk ]) 2 6,2500% & &
iR - HHE NSemkE BITIRA 210% © &R A
B 1574 %30,800,0007T 2 BIER(E © SINAEE
2,382,0007T Z fhET A RAME - TR IESemkE =
ZE-RET A= -BIEFEZEEHRTE
MBEFE -

agreement to purchase 6,250 ordinary shares of Semk
International Enterprises Limited (“Semk”) which represented
10% of the issued share capital of Semk. The cost of
investment included a fixed consideration of HK$30,800,000
plus an estimated contingent consideration of approximately
HK$2,382,000 calculated based on the estimated profit after tax
of Semk for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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18 BERFNRE (&) 18

R-B—tF+-A=t—A  ~%HE
RUA T3 E T B A TR S

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had interests
in the following principal associate, which is
unlisted:

NCIECE & AR 32 3 B EEEERLD FEXH SFEAHE

Place of Proportion of Principal Measurement

Name of company incorporation ownership interest %  activity method
—E—tF ZB-AF
2017 2016

R R IR AR TS 2
REEBARES A AR5 e
Semk International BVI 10 10 Provision of Equity
Enterprises Limited licensing

AREBEREZE1RSemMkEERES -
B R SESemkEBEERZE S -

AEBRAEEBERNRZ W  XER

services and
consultancy
services

The Group has the right to appoint 1 director to the
board of Semk and therefore regarded as having
significant influence in Semk.

The Group’s share of the revenue and results of

JEIEEEMBENT : its associate and its assets and liabilities, are as
follows:
R REER
ZE—RF
—E—+tF +=-—A=+—H
From date of
acquisition to 31
December
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BEE(BIEmE) Total assets including trademark 339,856 351,254
BEfE Total liabilities (34,906) (13,294)
BEFE(BREEZ) Net assets including trademark 304,950 337,960
Was Revenue 50,584 16,958

FE (E8) /B (Loss)/profit for the year (13,550) 6,143
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18 BERFNRE (&)

MBERBEYR

FERMBEEMRBRZERRNKE 2

FREE R -

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its investment in
associates.

—E—tF —ZE-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Rt+t-—A=+—82~ Net assets with trademark
BEFE(EREE) at 31 December 304,950 337,960
EIHEEFE@10% Share of net assets @ 10% 30,495 33,796

FEIGEE & AR (B18) Share of (loss)/profit of

ME@10% an associate @ 10% (1,355) 614

AEBELE THE QR ZBEBL
RZEHERRZREFE  RAE

5 4 I R A Ut B A

8- MxAMERR ZEBMBHRER
AERBEBEARBRZERE (KF

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its
share of result of certain associates as the Group’s
share of losses in these associates exceed its net
investments in these associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of loss of associates, extracted

EREF) BT : from the relevant financial statements of associates,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
R AR IEG R E Accumulated unrecognised share of

ANEIEE losses of associates (700) (700)
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19 S8 ENES 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
ELEE/ (AR&)FE Share of net assets/(liabilities) 231,309 (770)
ERTFEEDE Loans to joint ventures 952,596 952,596
1,183,905 951,826
EREE/ (BB FEZEZH SN Movements in share of net assets/(liabilities) is
R analysed as follows:
—E—t 5 —E—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
»n—H—H At 1 January (770) 846,310
JEAE & & EFE Share of profits of joint ventures 232,079 165,389
3200 (M) Addition (Note) - 3
w2 BN A (f5E38) Transfer to subsidiaries (Note 38) - (1,012,472)
wn+=—A=+—H At 31 December 231,309 (770)
B 5E Note:

REBEE-_T—AF+_A=+—BLFE AR
BI5E38FTH# 5 2 %2 % * Bollardbay Limited & &
BB REBEBRAR (518 A Bollardbay
EEDETBRAEEZEEE - FHNAE
{>%0pen Vantage LimitedJy i A4 B E2Data
Giant Limitedz & B 8% # 8 5 bt K948 & £k 41
BXZ o ANE@FT FOpen Vantage Limited 2 1%
B A K BIEHS,000T - HEBRARFMES
ZETHED IR AE3,974,0007T 7 K AEE
FOpen Vantage Limited °

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Bollardbay Limited
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Easywise Limited, (together,
the “Bollardbay Group”) ceased to be joint ventures of the
Group as a result of the transaction disclosed in Note 38. Open
Vantage Limited, a new joint venture, was set-up between
the Group and Data Giant Limited at the same proportion
of percentage ownership. Investment cost in Open Vantage
Limited paid by the Group was approximately HK$3,000. Certain
properties owned by Easywise Limited were transferred to Open

Vantage Limited at cost of approximately HK$3,974,000.
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ERLENES () 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

RZZE—+tF+-_A=+—8 ~%£E As at 31 December 2017, the Group had interests
RATHLETEEGELEREER in the following principal joint ventures, which are
unlisted:

AREH SR ALY BEREELS  EEEE BEME  HENE

Place of Proportion of Nature of the ~ Measurement

Name of company incorporation ownership interest % Principal activities relationship ~ method

“E-tf ZT-5F
2017 2016
REBARRES TER TER REERK (iRl B

Bollardbay Limited BVI N/A N/A~ Investment holding Note 1 Equity

HERERAF BB TER TER  DEEER izt R

Easywise Limited Hong Kong N/A N/A  Property development Note 1 Equity

EBBARNS BB fizie s

Talent Chain Investments BVI 35.70 35.70  Investment holding Note 2 Equity

Limited
BRREERAF BB MELR Mizr2 B
Crown Opal Investment Hong Kong 35.70 35.70  Property development Note 2 Equity
Limited
ABABRNS ESE Ti#h i

Open Vantage Limited BVI 35.70 3570 Property investment N/A Equity

fisF1: Bollardbay LimitedZ BB AR H1EH Note 1: Easywise Limited, a subsidiary of Bollardbay Limited,
BAGINEYERRLEE ER - was engaged in the business of property development
—NENA- =B ARAT T EE and became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
> A MBE AT (MEE38) - Company on 23 September 2016 (Note 38)

Mtx2 : Talent Chain Investments Limited” Note 2: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Talent
MEBATSRIGEAERATIHEYE Chain Investments Limited, is engaged in the business
R  c YEBRIBEHEMNEIED of property development. The property development
EEREFHEED  HTISEE0E project represents the development of a commercial
MAEEBB R _ZET—+F+_- A building in Kwun Tong, which mainly comprises
=+—8 BA=EIHHNI5%E HER 20-storey of office floors. As at 31 December 2017,
DEATREYE R-TE—XNE+—A 15% of the office portion were leased and classified
=+—B HEAARAEADEHAR as investment properties. As at 31 December 2016,
DI AR EYE - no office was leased and classified as investment

properties.

Talent Chain Investments Limited Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal

TR & B R QA &Open Vantage
Limited& M A A &) - H A {7 I % 7] BY
S5 WmE -

Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their shares.
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19 S ENES () 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
UWTINEHEEAREEMEBEAZEKXR Set out below is the summarised financial
BEDPEZVBERME - information for material joint ventures that are

material to the Group.

#aR
Talent Chain
Bollardbay Limited Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
SE-LE ZE-RE SE-LF 2R DIt ZE-RF STt ZE-RF
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

BRTn  ARTn  ERTR BETR ERTn BRTn BRETx BRTR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

i ASSETS
EiE) Non-current
RENE Investment properties - - 1,287,145 - 18,650 3974 1,305,795 3,974
FRBEERE  Totalnoncurentassels - . S s - . 18650 3974 1805795 3974
i) Current
ROAREE  Toorentases - S SIS 306865 4 49 3175 3076864
B LIABILITIES
i Current
EREZERR Trade payable and
EiBaE other current liahilities
(TRESBEE)  (excluding financial

liabilities) - - (319,706) (17) (52) (52)  (319,758) (69)
RHaEeE Total current liabilties = - (319,706) (17) (52) (52)  (319,758) (69)
i Non-current
SHEE Financial liabilties - - (3,659,906) (3,078,903) (4,123) (4014)  (3,664,029) (3,082,917)
EtERDER Other non-current liabilities - - (125,799) - - - (125,799) -
FROEEEE  Total non-current liabililes . - (3,785,705) (3078003)  (4128)  (4014) (3,789,828) (3,082917)

EE/(BE)FE  Netassets/iabilities) - - 633,400 (2,115) 14,524 (43) 647,924 (2,158)
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19 S ENRER (FE) 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
ag
Talent Chain
Bollardbay Limited Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
HE —Z-—5% Bz EE Bz = iz BZE
ZE-t% —f-RE ZE-tF ZE-RF ZE-t%F ZE-R"F ZE-t% ZE-RF
tZh ZB-1E t=h TZA t=A TZA t=A TZA
=t-H nA =t-8 =t-A =t-B =t-A =t-B =t-H
LEE  =+=H LFE 5§ LEE JIR:953 LEE 5§
From 1
Year January Year Year Year Year Year Year
ended 31 2016t023  ended 31  ended31 ended31  ended31 ended 31  ended 31
December  September  December  December December  December ~ December — December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BETr  A%Tr  EMTr BT E%Tn  B¥TR  B%Tn  A%Tn
HKS’000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000
K& Revenue - 119,714 3,508 - - - 3,508 119,714
HEKR Cost of sales - (42,895) - - - - - (42,895)
B2R% Operating expenses (7,305) (4,138) - (97) - (4,235) (7,305)
THRX Administrative expenses (147) (70) (111) (12) (51) (82) (309)
HERX Selling expenses (14,844) (406) - - - (408)  (14,844)
BREMEDR Change in fair value of
EEED investment properties 417929 762,420 - 14,676 - T77,09% 417,929
BEORER L Profit/(loss) from
Wsﬁ/ (E#) continuing operation 472452 761,314 (111) 14,567 (51) 775881 472,290
TEHFAR Income tax expense (9,017)  (125,799) - - - (125,799) (9,017)
ﬁ%ﬁfr TIEHERLE  Profit/(loss) after income
£%7E/(BB)  taxfrom continuing
operation 463,435 635,515 (111) 14,567 (51) 650,082 463,273
EzERA Other comprehensive
income - - - - - - -
2ERA/ Total comprehensive
(B8 income/(loss) 463435 635,515 (111) 14,567 (51) 650,082 463,273
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19 SELENER (FE 19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
MBERBZYHER Reconciliation of summarised financial information
FI2ZWMGEREGEDERRE 2R Reconciliation of the financial information presented
H{EZHE - to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.

—E—4tE —T—RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

R—HA—BZzEEFE Net assets at 1 January (2,158) 2,365,198
1 hn Addition . 8
FE R E Profit for the year 650,082 463,273
& Disposal - (2,830,637)
R+=—A=+—82 Net assets/(liabilities) at 31 December 647,924 (2,158)

BE/(AE)FE

BEDE L/ EZ@35.7% Interests in joint ventures @ 35.7% 231,309 (770)
B Goodwill -~ -
EIEEE/(afk)FE Share of net assets/(liabilities) 231,309 (770)
JE{G A E XM BE@35.7% Share of profit of joint ventures @ 35.7% 232,079 165,389
ERTEEDMEAEIEM  pE NHA The loans to joint ventures are unsecured,
NARFKI2EREE - HIEEAEBEN & interest-free and will not be repaid in the coming
HpfEZS - KB PR AEFERESE DX 12 months. They represent the Group’s long-term
WEFTE T —S D c BERE  MES interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
PHEREAZEZNERBEEHEANLE net investments in the joint ventures. The Directors
BB - ZELFTEIANBESE - consider that the carrying amounts of the loans to

the joint ventures approximate their fair value. The
amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

RZZE—+F+-_A=+—8 &~&EE As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no capital
WHEAEBBERERIBEE 2 & RAYES SR commitments nor contingent liabilities related to the

BE- development project.
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R-_E—+E+-_A=+—H TZE

20 SUBSIDIARIES
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Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

MEARIZFHBMT December 2017 are as follows:
NEER AMRIEE  CRORAERE FREEGRAEZREIL TEXH
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation  paid share capital  attributable to the Group  Principal activities
“E-tE ZF-AF
2017 2016
ABERRES 3BTET RERK
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100%  Investment holding
ARERAF B AT REER
Bondwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBARRES BEN0T REBR
Catel (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100%  Investment holding
SEERRA &k BEIT NERE
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
A% HERIEEESERBY
BUERK(RE)BRAA Eh 7%%1,000,0007C KB
Emerging Technology (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 95% 95%  Development, marketing and
Limited distribution of wireless multimedia
mobile devices
/ REARREREERERAA
KEEXBRAA B AT iofaezd
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and acting as
an agent for its immediate holding
company
EBARRES Ey REER
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
&b Ao REERK
Wapdon Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
ESRE (BN BRAF e 24,000,000% 7T HEBTER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited? PRC US$24,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products manufacturing
ERTRBE (R ERLDAF e 30,000,000% 7t HEETER
Welco Wong's Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products manufacturing

Limited®
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20 B AR (&) 20 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NAER AMRIEE  BRORMERE AREEERAERBIL TEXE
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation  paid share capital attributable to the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tf  E-R¥
2017 2016
EMR (R ERAT il 7,500,000% T REETEM
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100%  Electronic products manufacturing
102,799,653

ik T RELR
Wong's Circuits (Holdings) Pte Ltd Singapore 5$102,799,653 100% 100%  Investment holding
IREFERLA 0 75 %1,000,0007C EfEmES
Wong's Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Electronic products trading
IRTZ(RE)ERAT B A 5007 REZR
Wong’s Industrial (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding

AX 20,000,000F E HERTS AR
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and marketing
xE 10,000% 7T miaHhE
Wong’s International USA Corporation  United States US$10,000 100% 100%  Marketing
of America

# AT ARINEBEDSE - # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise.

ERINEHAEBXEEEARTER

The above lists the principal subsidiaries which

MAEBETERNEEFECTENW
BRAR - AAREEMAKEEERER
& B EMNE AR 2 2BRIE RSB
DK e

A R A R PR Y B A
THEEREE  EAEERAXSH
BRAAUFEE -

BE_ZT—tF+_A=1t—HI*F
ERERIERE - B AR EEAE 2%

ot

TERER -

principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.

No summarised financial information for subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests is disclosed as the
Directors consider they are not material.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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21 AIHEESRMEE 21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

BT T BT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

w—H—H At 1 January 1,153 12,983
NRBEED Fair value changes (464) (11,829)
\\/J\\g AddlthI’] 2,500 -
BEHMmEER Currency translation difference - (1)
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 3,189 1,153
A EeREERTBUTEIE Available-for-sale financial assets include the

followings:

—E—4tE TE—RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

EFHRAES Listed equity securities

-REALE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 658 1,122

-REABHEINLET — Listed outside Hong Kong 31 31
MBS Unlisted securities 2,500 -

3,189 1,153

LEmESENTE Market value of listed securities 689 1,153

—E—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BEET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

IERB Non-current 2,531 31

mE Current 658 1,122

BEt Total 3,189 1,153
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21

22

AHHETREE (F)

RBERR - AR HREESHEED
BRAREEIIK -

KEE N RER R E E 185 8 464,0007C
—E—X4F B ¥11,793,0007T) ©

TN ESREE Y EEEN T E
s

21

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, all
available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair
value.

Impairment loss of HK$464,000 (2016:
HK$11,793,000) was recognised during the year.

The carrying amounts of available-for-sale financial
assets are denominated in the following currencies:

—E—+tF ZE—RF

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$' 000

ot Hong Kong dollar 3,158 1,122
W Sterling 31 31
3,189 1,153

EEFSHEE(AF)

AT ABEIEFEREERELMSH
BEDN

22

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES)

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

o =
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FIEFTISTEE Deferred income tax assets 15,758 12,656
BEFBREE Deferred income tax liabilities (95,233) (94,815)
ELEHREEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities (79,475) (82,159)




e ISR

2017 3 | TEKEIBREBERATE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 EEFRSHREE (AFE) (H)

EIEFTSHARBEBABEMT

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)

The gross movements on the deferred income tax
account is as follows:

—®—tF —F-A
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
w—H—H At 1 January (82,159) 10,072
PR A W SRR (M 3£12) Recognised in the consolidated
income statement (Note 12) 1,061 11
REAM 2 E R AR Recognised in other comprehensive income 677 -
U B8 B /8 A 7] (Fff 5£38) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) - (91,484)
BEHMmEEE Currency translation differences 946 (758)
R+=A=+—H At 31 December (79,475) (82,159)

REF AR — BB £ SRR -
EEFEHEEREBRENZZE
mF :

The movements in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BIEFGHEE - Deferred income tax assets:
fTETA
MREE-
HERE BiE F % 2 5 k|
Fair value of
Decelerated derivative -
tax interest
depreciation Provision rate swap Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
RZE—RF At 31 December 2015 4,946 5,781 - 10,727
+-A=+—H
WA KFE XA Credited to the consolidated
income statement 487 2,200 - 2,687
E¥MmEEHE Currency translation differences (353) (405) - (758)
R-ZZB—RF At 31 December 2016 5,080 7,576 - 12,656
+=—A=+-—8
RE& W R5H A Credited to the consolidated
income statement 352 1,127 - 1,479
REMEMEUYA Credited to the other
st A comprehensive income - - 677 677
EWBREER Currency translation
differences 420 526 - 946
R-IZE—+tHF At 31 December 2017 5,852 9,229 677 15,758

+=A=+-8
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22 EEFIEHREE (BE) (&) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

BEEMEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEXR
mERE BEERE BnE
Fair value
Accelerated tax  adjustment on
depreciation properties Total
BETT BETT BT T
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
R-ZZE—R&+=A At 31 December 2015 (655) - (655)
=+—H
RiRA R R MG Charged to the consolidated
income statement (2,676) - (2,676)
U BB 2 A Acquisition of subsidiaries - (91,484) (91,484)
R-ZEB-X"E+=A At 31 December 2016 (3,331) (91,484) (94,815)
=t—-H
RiZeRaERNB Charged to the consolidated
income statement (418) - (418)
R-ZE-t+t&+=A At 31 December 2017 (3,749) (91,484) (95,233)
=+-H

BEFSHEEDRERBHR BN R
AJ B2 35 38 K oK FE BRI B & 3R i Bk P
FEHRIBEBBETER N2 —+t
F+-_A=1+—8  ~&EETAUIKHE
RRFBE 2 BT RBAREEELN B
B#165,414,0007T (Z T — N F B
164,083,0007T) - MR BB Z F 5 E
ZHIBEBZ RRKERGNEZERA
ABENENHE TS - BORRRIEE
BRERELERIBEEE - FIAEMIABEY
A fE (R A e o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2017, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$165,414,000 (2016:
HK$164,083,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profit from these tax loss carry-forwards
is not probable. All the tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
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22 EEFRSHREE (AFE) (H)

23

AMETRABEEMA LK B A A
RIRDIRIRBFEMN AN ERIET
MIEEE  WIHARDREZERD KR
BEMNNKET S R_T—+tF+=
A=+—8  AXEERFEFMAIA
BB~ A& A 4B %871,507,000
TT(ZZF—RF : B¥777,220,0007T)
ZADIERRBFE - gt MK
BB AR FT 9k A% B 2 i A TR &
NF5%ZE10% °
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of the withholding tax on the undistributed
retained profits of certain PRC incorporated
subsidiaries as the distribution of these
undistributed retained earnings is not probable.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s PRC
incorporated subsidiaries have approximately
HK$871,507,000 (2016: HK$777,220,000)
undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The
applicable withholding tax rate on dividend
distributed by PRC incorporated subsidiaries is
ranged from 5% to 10%.

78 23 INVENTORIES
—E—4tE TE—XF
2017 2016
BT BT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R & Raw materials 270,032 237,780
£ & m Work in progress 30,596 48,510
B mn Finished goods 213,846 110,238

514,474 396,528
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24 EXERWERE 24 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
—E—+tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
BT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
®n—H—H At 1 January 732,310 -
W BE K B~ 7] (Mf5E38) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38) — 741,810
REEMRKERS Transfer to investment properties upon
wREWZE (KizE16) commencement of lease (Note 16) (362,595) (9,500)
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 369,715 732,310
ETKYMEFERE Stock of completed properties comprised:
—B-tF  ZB-A
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
[SE3 YN R Commercial office units 348,015 675,000
BAL Car parking space 21,700 57,310
369,715 732,310

EXRMEFERMHLUREL -

R_ZE—+&F+_A=+—H E@
B8 #369,715,0007T (ZZT—7RF : /&
%732,310,0007T) < E =AM EF &
EEMEARSBERZEM R (M=
32) e

The stock of completed properties are all located in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2017, stock of completed
properties with carrying value of HK$369,715,000
(2016: HK$732,310,000) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 32).
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25 FEWE ZIRX 25 TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E—+tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BETFR  OBETR
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
& W E 5 iR K Trade receivables 910,284 830,844
AEBGTESRPZBREHRETEN The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
F30HE1208 1% - B I EUEE(] customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
LB o and no interest is charged.
AEERERKRESERIZEZAH R Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by
BRoET invoice date is as follows:
e =
2017 2016
BETE  BETR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
0Z60H 0 - 60 days 634,295 703,808
61£290H 61— 90 days 195,052 100,336
HiBo0H Over 90 days 80,937 26,700
910,284 830,844
RZE—tEHF+ZA=1T—H ERK As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables
E SR A B 122,919,000 (= F of approximately HK$122,919,000 (2016:
— /N4 ¢ B #65,588,0007T) E 1 BFE HK$65,588,000) were past due but not impaired.
WERE o ZERNES 2T Y & These relate to a number of independent customers
RPBELBZBITFPER - ZFRK for whom there is no recent history of default. The
R EREE DT T - ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:
e e
2017 2016
BET T EEE T T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
0&60H 0 - 60 days 117,762 63,682
61£290H 61— 90 days 3,725 1,825
FBE90H Over 90 days 1,432 81
122,919 65,588
RZE—+tFRE—RF+A There was no trade receivables which were
=+—H TEEKEZEZIEREBRER impaired and provided for as at 31 December 2017
Ve R E R - K@ B R R (E 2 & and 2016. Trade receivables that were neither
W Z 5 R 3R B2 % 44 3 A N 48 HE K RIR past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of
RECEFPERE - customers from whom there was no recent history

of default.



192

Wong'’s International Holdings Limited | 2017 Annual Report

e ISR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 BWE SRR (HE)

AEECDHETE R TREWE ZREE
WEZEREBIELRE - REBERL
B HRNEEERYESAEH LER
2HEWEIESR  WEEERELELE
B PSR IE L RE RS

RS HERNRAEERR S L
FEW RN R mE(E - ARELEISAT
(A 40 f (PR AR o

A L R 5 B 2 SR T LA T 5
A -

25 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group has fully provided for all trade
receivables that are determined to be not
recoverable. Based on past experience, the
management believed that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of the above
balances as there had not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances were
considered fully recoverable.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of the
receivable mentioned above. The Group does not
hold any collateral on security.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

—E— & —E-RF
2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

ETT United States dollar 562,700 521,141
AREE Chinese renminbi 268,294 219,565
ok Hong Kong dollar 79,290 90,138

910,284 830,844
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26 FAMFIE > 7l REMEWIRRR

26 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BETT ST T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEBEEZES Deposits for fixed assets 18,375 5,442
EREFEE Prepayments for inventories 7,821 8,928
FE U E R Value added tax receivables 39,416 12,503
FRERHES Effective rent receivable 3,673 8,381
EHBELALEERS Management and utility deposit 6,071 6,084
HbEW R R IENFKIE  Other receivables and prepayments 48,794 40,520
124,150 81,858
o IEREE S Less: non-current portion (24,446) (11,526)
b2 Current portion 99,704 70,332
TERHIE - Al MEMEKRERCRE The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits

BTN ERHE

and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

—E—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

AR Chinese renminbi 71,172 32,753
ETT United States dollar 2,404 3,007
7 Hong Kong dollar 50,303 43,951
= Japanese yen 241 1,993
B Others 30 154
124,150 81,858
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27 FEW () Bt X E 7R

27 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(DUE TO)

ASSOCIATES
—E—tHF TE—XF
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FE LB 2 N | FOE Amount due from associates 2,009 9
FE T BsE & A RISRIR Amount due to an associate - (11,622)

EWEE AERIEAEER £ RE
%Eiz@ hﬁﬂ Hﬁﬁfﬁéﬁifﬁzﬁz A fEE
BE RZFE—+F+=—A=+—H"
KEH&HH%:-:’A FRIE #0778 #1,349,0007T
(ZZ—7"F : B%1,349,0007T) B 1E
WE o WAREESRBBEZHE L EEE
%maﬁ)'%%?ﬁ#%ﬁﬁ@iﬁttz
ZBEERFHE o Y E AT FIE
BEEEHE o

Eé:%ﬁ—/—\i‘i—_ﬂ_—l——ﬁ JRE 1<) Bt
&N R FRIB R WESemk I 1D £ T30%
E’Jﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬂ’éﬁfﬁéfﬂg - BAFUELR
REBEE—_FT—+tF+= H +—H1t
FEFE - BB E QBB ER
g -

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and without pre-determined repayment
terms. The carrying amounts approximated their fair
values. As at 31 December 2017, amounts due from
associates of approximately HK$1,349,000 (2016:
HK$1,349,000) were impaired. The credit quality of
the balances that are neither past due nor impaired
were assessed by management with reference to
historical information about counter party default
rates. The amounts due from associates were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

As at 31 December 2016, the amount due to
an associate represented the 30% of purchase
price and cash compensation for the acquisition
of shares in Semk. The amount has been settled
during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
amount due to an associate was denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.
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28 RERFAELEEYRIIEHIRIT 28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

7K SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
—E—tF —ZE-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERE Cash on hand 259 269
RITF K Cash at bank 470,198 594,337
REMBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 470,457 594,606
BERHE ABB=MF 2  Short-term bank deposits with original
MHRIT R maturity over three months 373,630 469,657
844,087 1,064,263
RekBeEFEWRERRITERA Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
THEEE deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
—E-tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT T BETF T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
& Hong Kong dollar 100,861 136,236
AR Chinese renminbi 162,337 176,621
ETT United States dollar 572,087 746,583
Hity Others 8,802 4,823
844,087 1,064,263
RITHEFZINEEHEREFR A The weighted average effective interest rate on
252%(—F—/RE :1.37%) ° bank deposits was 2.52% (2016: 1.37%) per
annum.
EITEAIEERESBHETEAMNEX 7 Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
EENTRBEENF B o on daily bank deposit rates.
4 &% H1F U8 #593,411,0007T Cash and short-term deposits of HK$593,411,000
(ZF—XNE B 720,129,0007T) Jb (2016: HK$720,129,000) are held in China and
NP EEE  BESTEHINE B IER are subject to local exchange control regulations.
F oo R E T HANE B IR T E SR These local exchange control regulations provide
KHEOBESHES  TEES BRI for restrictions on exporting capital from the
B o country, other than through normal dividends.
N-_E—RE+-_A=+—8 " &K As at 31 December 2016, HK$3,362,000 were
3,362,000 BRIBITHEIEAS HiR restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
SREEBENYRSGEZHZ R _E—+F electricity deposit. As at 31 December 2017, there
+-A=+—H  IEEASHIEEHN was no restricted cash for electricity deposits.

SR BT
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29

TTEE®MIA

TETRERELES TBEMIFR
e AW WITET AR LR
% Rlgst THIARBOMOBRT#
REE |  AEEEATMITEESR T A :

29 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the
hedging criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
trading’ for accounting purposes below. The Group
has the following derivative financial instruments:

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =K BE BfE
BT BETT BEFTT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
& 4= A Interest rate swaps
- BEEE - held-for-trading - 120 - 234
1) 22 42 B Interest rate swaps
— Banefr — cash flow hedge - 4,101 - -
- 4,221 - 234

AREMEEHEORZZTE—LF
+TZ A=+ —HZRBEASEARB
#517,250,0007T (ZZE — /R F : B
24,150,0007T) °

TETENBEABEEELRIARA
EBEFELEZSHTABEAR IRIF
BERE R TARER® - WITETL
AEHARBEMRRI2EAARGE -
e AR EESREE-

AEBARESREM D 2 S BRS
RifFE2.12 - FAEENTETARAE
BRZITERBRFLHEME3S -

The notional principal amount of the outstanding
interest rate swap contract at 31 December 2017
was HK$517,250,000 (2016: HK$24,150,000).

Derivatives are classified as held for trading and
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
unless they are designated as hedges. They are
presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
expected to be settled within 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.

The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
hedges is set out in Note 2.12. For information
about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.
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30 BNE SR

30

AEERNBZEREFREZAHZE

TRADE PAYABLES

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by

BOMTmT invoice date is as follows:
—E—+tF —F—R

2017 2016
BHEET T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
0%260H 0 - 60 days 546,198 613,632
61290H 61— 90 days 104,018 98,044
A0 H Over 90 days 43,438 12,762
693,654 724,438

AEBENEZHRRZEEEATS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade

BEBEE payables are denominated in the following
currencies:
—E—+tF —F—R

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
it Hong Kong dollar 195,656 212,305
AR Chinese renminbi 83,755 48,008
ETT United States dollar 383,726 439,091
= Japanese yen 11,359 10,297
BT Euro 18,960 14,501
HAty Others 198 236
693,654 724,438

31 BErERAREMEMNRR

31 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E—+tF —F—R

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

BRI REBK Deposits and advances received from
customers 120,780 111,906
JEEHE & 12 M B AR Accrued employee benefit costs 106,066 95,227
H b e IR Other tax payables 4,038 5,970

JEFTME - [T REFEA Accrued freight, delivery and

storage charges 14,581 14,574
Rt AfEEER Accrued utilities charges 1,660 1,684
JEEtIERTREE Accrued construction payables 30,266 30,266
Hity Others 84,203 69,748
361,594 329,375
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31

32

BB AR EMBENRR (&)

REEERT B R R MRS BRK R

HENATIIE®EHE

(continued)

31 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and

other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:
—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
AR Chinese renminbi 139,496 115,063
B Hong Kong dollar 148,916 158,927
ETT United States dollar 72,780 54,771
= Japanese yen 56 -
Frhnig ot Singapore dollar - 105
EHAh Others 346 509
361,594 329,375
BN 32 BORROWINGS
—E—+1fF —E—R
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
SREMURIRTTE S - MK Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 288,354 418,182
RERITESR - B Short-term bank loans, unsecured 290,000 127,771
o REIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FAEE  BEA repayment within one year, secured 66,054 66,054
o REIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FREE A repayment after one year, secured 1,346,446 1,312,500
RERITZEHLZIBEF ©  Portion of a mortgage loan from bank due
R—FREE ‘ for repayment within one year 6,900 6,900
KERITZHWHIEBESFK © Portion of a mortgage loan from bank due
R—FRrEERAES for repayment after one year which
RERFEEKX contains a repayment on demand clause 10,350 17,250
BER Total borrowings 2,008,104 1,948,657
—EF—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEMRED Non-current 1,346,446 1,312,500
k) Current 661,658 636,157
BE R Total borrowings 2,008,104 1,948,657
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RZZE—+F+-_A=1+—8 £K&EEH
BERzEEBRNOT :

32 EX(#E) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

—E—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BET T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

1FE R Within 1 year 661,658 636,157
1&24F Between 1 and 2 years 66,054 66,054
2E 54 Between 2 and 5 years 1,280,392 1,246,446
BWE R Total borrowings 2,008,104 1,948,657

RZE—+FE+_A=+—H "8
B #17,250,0007T (ZE— R F : B
24,150,0007T) 2 #LZEEXREEE A
75 #86,139,0007T (= — /N F : B
88,377,0007T) 2 AL E + i R IEFIK
#(fFzE15) ©

R-E—+&E+-_A=+—8 Bk
1,346,446,0007C (ZF — N F : B
1,312,500,0007T) 2 & B #R 17 B A
T3 IEAEA

e ZEBRARAMEBKEM@EIME
#)7% #2 324,613,000T (= &
— N4 : ##1,865,000,000
T ZIREYMEREEBENAE
369,715,000 (=& — N 4F ¢
75 #732,310,0007T) 2 B K Y
XFEZHR

o AKREBERMEE D ZETalent Chain
Investments Limited® Z#E 25~

BB

o ARAEEZEWBRARSE
ERAAIFTIRME LR A B
760,000,0007T 2 &R °

R-_E—+E+-_A=+—H K&
BrEXAEARRREZCEERE
A o

As at 31 December 2017, mortgage loan
of approximately HK$17,250,000 (2016:
HK$24,150,000) was secured by the land and
buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
HK$86,139,000 (2016: HK$88,377,000) (Note 15).

As at 31 December 2017, the long-term bank loans
of HK$1,346,446,000 (2016: HK$1,312,500,000)
was secured by the following:

e (Charges over investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,324,613,000 (2016: HK$1,865,000,000)
and stock of completed properties
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$369,715,000 (2016: HK$732,310,000)
owned by Easywise Limited;

e A share charge over the Group’s entire interest
in Talent Chain Investments Limited, a joint
venture of the Group;

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
Easywise Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company.
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32 B (&) 32 BORROWINGS (continued)
bR BB AEECRBETRL In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
RITHENN 2 & T IR HI12249 - comply with certain restrictive financial covenants

imposed by certain banks.

EARBERZEHERE  HEKEE The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
HAREEMES - approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.
IEMBERCEEEREEALEER The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
Ao AABEDRBIEERFE2.29% approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
(ZE—RF 1 224%) TR ZI|RET on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
WEBRARBESERE2R - the borrowing rate of 2.29% (2016: 2.24%) and is
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
AEEERZEEBENTYEBEE : The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:
—ZT—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
s Hong Kong dollar 2,008,104 1,940,886
ETT United States dollar - 7,771
2,008,104 1,948,657
ERANMEAKR T BERENENT The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:
—E—+tF —E—REF
2017 2016
RHRTER Long-term bank loan 1.94% — 2.51% 2.14% — 2.33%
ERBEBRITER Trust receipt bank loans 1.89% — 2.14% 0.91% - 2.03%
REERIRTTE R Short-term bank loans 1.94% — 2.51% 0.90% - 2.17%

ZIBE & Mortgage loan 1.65% — 1.82% 1.09%
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33 B 33 SHARE CAPITAL
gl 4= HE
Number of Nominal
shares value
BT I
HK$’ 000
SR EEA®0.107T Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
2 E R
ETE R Authorised:
R-ZE—ARE—H—A8- At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
—E-X"F+=ZA=+—H and 31 December 2017 700,000,000 70,000
k=—Z—+tHF+=-A=+—~H
EBEITREERA Issued and fully paid:
R-ZB—X"E—A—1- At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
—ZE—XF+=H=+—H and 31 December 2017 478,483,794 47,848
k=—Z—tH+=-A=+—~H
FA - KRB EEAME QR ERE Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
B HEXREBELOARAREM LETES - purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year.
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BfzEa

Mz

REBEZ BEHRBEAREANR-NANE
F B AR AT T B & R AR5 2 T (E 2R
ARRBEMETRD ZEEME 2
Z8

PEIAMER TS - AR B RFEAM
PRI R 8 2 BB A RIZA D BL— 20 B
BEMNE(EHEBEFEBERR) &=
REBLREERERES -

BRERME - REPEEEM R
ERCEE  PRERBASEANED
10% 8B =5 E —RFM - BREER
RE SRR AR S SRS =2
B BREEREIZERIMER
250% + RIFIE (R EAE— 25
Bl - —MREBAIBREHEEBEFRER
AR BITARAD -

REEBRESTS  DEZBAIETD
HESGFEE - EBRRESTAR
EBRREER -

HE-_Z—+t&F+-A=+—BL*F
& B ¥10,745,0000C (ZZ — /R F ¢
75 1518,442,0007T) EH B E — M HHE
RE¥BERES -
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34 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time

of the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion
of their after — tax profit (after offsetting prior years’
losses) to the general reserve and the enterprise

expansion fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
statutory general reserve. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to
equity owners. When the balance of reserve reaches
50% of each entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The general reserve can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the

issuance of bonus shares.

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the

development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
HK$10,745,000 (2016: HK$18,442,000) was
appropriated to the general reserve and the enterprise

expansion fund.
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35 REHERER

(a)

BR P 15 %5 B0 A1) 7 B2
fﬁé@%‘EZﬁ,ﬁEﬂﬂT

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS
BEE®

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income

tax to net cash generated from
operations is as follows:

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
EIEEE Operating activities
B P 15 250 B A1) B Profit before income tax 513,190 518,482
LTI FIEFE Adjustments for:
BEKA — Finance costs — net 33,146 14,232
JEfh & & 1 FH Share of profits of joint ventures (232,079) (165,389)
JE (R 5 & A 7] Share of loss/(profit) of an associate 1,355 (614)
E1E, (FIE)
ME - BERZRE Depreciation of property, plant and
ZIE equipments 46,116 40,693
MHE i Rt Amortisation on leasehold land
15 FA 4 2 35 and land use rights 590 596
cRTHEZ Unrealised gains on financial
ANEB W instrument (114) (497)
HEME - KE Gains on disposals of property,
2 W plant and equipment (490) (1,411)
HEHEE S Gain on disposal of nil-paid rights
BEZRBBK shares of an available-for-sale
H AR AR 19 Y 2= financial asset - (789)
EFMFEAEMET  Gain on re-measurement of a joint
&= venture - (112,249)
A ESREEY  Impairment on available-for-sale
BE financial assets 464 11,793
A&\ 2 #L Write-back of
— EBNESKEAM — trade and other payables (753) (2,001)
J& T BR 3R
— EWE S KEM - trade and other receivables - (281)
JE Y BR SR
REAMKRLABE Fair value gain of investment
= properties (99,776) (551)
LEEREHAIZ Operating cash flows before changes
KERERE in working capital 261,649 302,014
T_f%i Inventories (84,099) (52,192)
FEWE 5 BR K Trade receivables (40,357) (159,248)
BRRIE e Prepayments, deposits and
Ko H b U BR 3K other receivables (38,747) 1,698
B ZER Trade payables (38,828) 82,559
et B R & E A Accruals and other payables 22,854 23,025
JE 1~ BR 3K
LEEEMRS Cash generated from operations 82,472 197,856
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35 FERETREK (F) 35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS (continued)
(b) ERERERAN HEWE (b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds
BMEREZEMSRERE from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:
S i i
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BREFE Net book amount 1,097 290
HEWE  WENEE Gains on disposals of property, plant and
< Wz equipment 490 1,411
LEME - J'r‘ﬁ}?‘%&%&ﬁ Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
FTiS 3T and equipment 1,587 1,701
(c) BERFELHK (c) Net debt reconciliation
REEHINBEIE TR RERF This section sets out an analysis of net debt
BB o and the movements in net debt.
—E—tF
2017
BT T
HK$’ 000
f@ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%% Cash and cash equivalents 470,457
2R 1T T 3K Short-term bank deposits 373,630
BN — AR —FWNEE Borrowings - repayable within one year (661,658)
B — AR —F1%{EE Borrowings — repayable after one year (1,346,446)
B HE Net debt (1,164,017)
RBeMRSFEYM Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
RHRITER deposits 844,087
E54% — ATERNE  Gross debt - variable interest rates (2,008,104)

B FRE Net debt (1,164,017)
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35 MERLERKRER(E)

(c) ERFHEHIKE)

35 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS (continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

HttEE REEBAR
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
g% g%
BER ok - AR - AR
REEEN BOER -FREE -FHRESR g%
Borrowings  Borrowings
Cashand  Short-term - repayable - repayable
cash bank within after
equivalents deposits one year one year Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB-RETZA=t—H  Netdebtas at 31 December 2016 594,606 469,657 (636,157)  (1,312,500) (884,394)
ZEBER
BemE Cash flows (143,424) (101,412) 40,553 (100,000) (304,283)
SEFE Foreign exchange adjustments 19,275 5,385 - - 24,660
Eth#BRe g Other non-cash movements - - (66,054) 66,054 -
RZB-tE+ZA=1t—-H  Netdebtas at 31 December 2017 470,457 373,630 (661,658)  (1,346,446) (1,164,017

ZEBFE
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36 NAIEEZHKEMRKKHEE 36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

& 5 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
— —TRF
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE ASSETS
kFRBEE Non-current asset
MEARAMKAE  Investmentsin subsidiaries 563,366 563,366
REBEE Current assets

TERTRE - 5T& M EM Prepayments, deposits and other

JE U BR 3R receivables 183 180
AR NEIE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 389,353 389,427
BeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,590 1,293
e 391,126 390,900
WEE Total assets 954,492 954,266
EE EQUITY
FEBRAATEEA Equity attributable to

s owners of the Company
fi& 2 Share capital 47,848 47,848
H bR Other reserves M 3ENote (a) 675,934 675,934
REBAF Retained earnings B sENote (a) 62,872 62,706
s Totalequity 786,654 786,488
=R LIABILITIES
RBAE Current liabilities
JEETERMHEMER  Accruals and other payables 2,809 2,769
R NGIE ] Amounts due to subsidiaries 165,029 165,009
we®|® Total liabilites 167838 167,778
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 954,492 954,266
RBEEFE Net current assets 223,288 223,122
BWEERRBERE Total assets less current

liabilities 786,654 786,488

MBRRER T N\F=A=-++H
EE=aetE R RENE X h 5

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

BEEREEE 27 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:
T BFK FTEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
E s g e b Fa Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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36

A

28 (

5

b

R

|

ﬁ;ZEﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁ%&ﬁﬁ 36

i

n

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)

MitE(a) ARRIEHEES Note (a) Reserves movement of the Company
EAEE
RADRE i ER8E% REBR ]
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-Z—X"F—A—8 At 1 January 2016 153,025 345 522,564 60,432 736,366
FEFHE Profit for the year - - - 38,161 38,161
—E-XFEMRE Dividends paid relating to 2016 - - - (35,887) (35,887)
R=-Z—XR"E+=-HA=+—H At31 December 2016 153,025 345 522,564 62,706 738,640
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 43,229 43,229
—E—tFEMNRE Dividends paid relating to 2017 - - - (43,063) (43,063)
R=-Z—tH&+=-HA=+—H At31 December 2017 153,025 345 522,564 62,872 738,806

BifsET

ERRZEHBRBEAREANR-NNAE
FEARADAMBENE R REEE
EFEZREEEARBREEMET
Rz HEMEZZ/E - BRERRDER
ARARZABMAA > ARF 2 EHER
AR TR

Note 1: The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the book values of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 1990. Under the Companies
Act and the Bye-laws of the Company, contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to

the shareholders.
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37 EiE 37 COMMITMENTS
(@ ME -BELREHZERNEE (a) Capital commitments in respect of property,
N plant and equipment are as follows:

—E—+tHF —E-RF

2017 2016

BT T BB FIT

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

SHEEEE 3 Contracted but not provided for 15,682 6,008

EEEERTD Authorised but not contracted for = -

15,682 6,008

by RZZTE—tF+=-_A=+—8"
AEBRBEZMHATARE L EE
BEFgEHEERT  HERE
MEFIBERENT -

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s future
aggregate minimum lease payments under
various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements in respect of rented premises are
analysed as follows:

—F-tF —E-RF

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

—F R Within one year 7,396 12,183
F-EERF (BIEEREMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 33 6,572
FRE T F Over five years - -
7,429 18,755

REHERAERAEEREET
EFEMEANZIEE -HHOK
MeRFOFHFERRETE

Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for certain of its office
premises. Leases and rentals are negotiated
and fixed for an average of 2 years.
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37 A& (&)

(c) RZZFE—+F+=-_A=+—8"
AEEREBEZMHDAAEHE2HEE
EFrgeaengrk sl k

37 COMMITMENTS (continued)
(c) As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s future

rental income receivables under various
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

ADHTAT rented premises are analysed are as follows:
—E—+tF AN
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—F R Within one year 52,704 46,610
F_E2FRLF (BEEERT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 124,572 71,140
177,276 117,750

REHER R AN EE L E
REVERKRZHES - HHOMHE
SRV FH2AFEERET -

38 XS5t

Bollardbay Limited& — M A A RQ
A 2 @ & & W B & AlUbiquitous
International Limited ([UIL]) &
Data Giant#Efz A Al e RZF—/RF
—HA— B8 - UlLEData Giant® Bl %
ABollardbay LimitedB #& 17l &K 2
35.7%}264.3% ° Bollardbay%s B Jy #t
EMEERREBEE -R_T—RF—A
—H A& B EBollardbaySk B 5% A
BEDE-

Operating lease receipts represent rentals
receivable by the Group for leasing its
investment properties. Leases and rentals are
negotiated and fixed for an average of 2.4
years.

38 BUSINESS COMBINATION

Bollardbay Limited is a company formed between
Ubiquitous International Limited (“UIL"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Data
Giant. As at 1 January 2016, UIL and Data Giant
owned 35.7% and 64.3% of the issued share capital
of Bollardbay Limited respectively. Bollardbay
Group are engaged in property development and
leasing. Bollardbay Group was classified as a joint
venture by the Group as at 1 January 2016.
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38 ¥KE6(E)

R_ZZEE-—R"RFALAZ-_+=8"
Bollardbay Limitedf# [ElData Giant
FEEzE2MEETRA (BER
1) e REEBIZZ 5% - Bollardbay&
KAEARARZEZEL2EMB AR (R
EWIEEIE]) - TREJIRERES
BZREKAARWEE &N EE

METEERABZAAER-

38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

On 23 September 2016, Bollardbay Limited
repurchased all the issued share capital owned by
Data Giant (the “Repurchase Transaction”).
the Repurchase Transaction, Bollardbay Group
became indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company (“Deemed Acquisition”). The following
table summarised the investment cost and the fair
value of identified assets acquired and liabilities
assumed for the Deemed Acquisition.

After

RZE—RF
hAZ+=8
As at
23 September
2016
BT T
HK$’ 000
RIEWRBEEZRERE : Investment cost of Deemed Acquisition:
- BEfNBEERE BESE — Cash consideration paid, including the bank
AR A AR E 8 borrowings drawn down by Easywise Limited
Data GiantZ SR1TE X and transferred to Data Giant 760,612
— REBERSHBEREER — Fair value of the Group’s equity interest
Bollardbay%e Bl J% # 2 in Bollardbay Group at the date of the
A EE () Repurchase Transaction (Note) 1,124,721
RER KB Total investment cost 1,885,333
FrUtBE Rl I EE M Fr&YE B &  Fair value of the identifiable assets acquired
ZRAREBE: and liabilities assumed:
— REMHE — Investment properties 1,855,150
- ExXMERE - Stock of completed properties 741,810
- BREBEZER FTehEHMm — Trade receivables, deposits and other
FE YL BR 5K receivables 19,820
— ENE S REMEMERR - Trade and other payables (37,325)
— EHFEEAGE — Current income tax liabilities (171,327)
— REMEHREE — Deferred income tax liabilities (91,484)
— B RERIE — Amount due to a shareholder (431,311)
s Total 1,885,333
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38

X% e6t(E) 38 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
B 5T - Note:
BT
HK$’000
RIELRZ ZRALE R Bollardbay£E i  Carrying value of the Group’s equity interest in Bollardbay
ZEEHEE Group before the Repurchase Transaction 1,012,472
B EAEENBollardbay £ E#25 2 Wz Gain on re-measurement of the Group’s equity in Bollardbay Group 112,249
RIELR 5 HEAEE R BollardbayEE i Fair value of the Group’s equity interest in Bollardbay Group
ZRR(EE at the date of the Repurchase Transaction 1,124,721
SEAEKNERTEUELREEN B B The revenue and operating profit included in the consolidated
Bollardbay(e BB —Z—NEAA -+ =BK income statement since 23 September 2016 contributed by
& B2 B 1814,522,0007T & % 8,628,000 © Bollardbay Group were HK$14,522,000 and HK$8,628,000

respectively.

fR{FBollardbayE B T —/<F— A —HFHH Had Bollardbay Group been consolidated from 1 January 2016,
A0t BN BE R BE WS EY BB the consolidated income statement would show pro-forma

3,649,088,0007T ° revenue of HK$3,649,088,000.
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39 BEALIRS

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H ' AQF
ZERABRREATERKLAE (HARER
Salop Investment Limited » £ J5 # 1#
2ERBRESZAF) °

(a) HBEALZHERR

JEW TENBERRRAELE
REHRGEETBERRAEK - B
GRS HIFE19K% 27

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—8"
FEATRRM IR - 5T & M E b B I
AR 7K 2 78 #3,339,0007T /& K B
Wong’'s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited® T M B 2 &
ZRF MBZRAIZEEREE
BREATBREEZHAKRTES
LEZER - #EHRBEEM T
RN EBREERY -#HE—
E—+F+_A=1T—-BHLF
B BRAREDBE-

RZE-REFE+ZA=+—
H - ElWong' s Kong King
International (Holdings) Limited
ETHBRAAREBELNEE
1,242,0007T 2 RIBRERE ° 10
—E—+tF+ZA=1+—8 " EK
Wong’s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited# T K& 2 7]
2 RIEN BORE -

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Investment Limited, a
company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a) Balances with related parties

The amounts due from/to associates and
joint ventures are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The terms are
set out in Notes 19 and 27.

As at 31 December 2016, included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
was HK$3,339,000 being amounts due from
certain subsidiaries of Wong's Kong King
International (Holdings) Limited, the Director
and major shareholder of which is the brother
of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben and the uncle
of Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada. The balance
was unsecured, interest free and without
pre-determined repayment terms. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the amounts
were settled.

As at 31 December 2016, amounts due
from certain subsidiaries of Wong’s Kong
King International (Holdings) Limited of
approximately HK$1,242,000 were impaired.
As at 31 December 2017, there was no
impairment of amounts due from certain
subsidiaries of Wong’s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited.
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39 MEALXRF (&) 39

(b) TR

R—ZE—+F+=_A=+—8"
RNRBIFEN B R A ER LB
3,313,670,0007C (=& — /N 4
7 #3,386,075,0007T) 2 R 1T &t
B MIRTTIRESEER -

W-—ZE—+F+-A=+—8"
B ARIFTB AR E L A B
2,008,104,0007T (=& — /N F ¢
75 #1,948,657,0007T) ©

(c) FEEE AESRM

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Guarantee

As at 31 December 2017, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,313,670,000 (2016:
HK$3,386,075,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at

31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$2,008,104,000 (2016: HK$1,948,657,000).

(c) Key management compensation

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 14,871 15,856

TE4T Bonus 6,470 6,350
RIRE A Pension costs

— REHERGHE — defined contribution schemes 54 94

21,395 22,300
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R-ZF—+4F+=-H=+—H As at31 December 2017

BRAREEE
NELRRAE ER (B5K) R RS R# HEHR  THER ZREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry Completion Interest
REE 2 RENS
Investment properties in Hong Kong
BENERRERI8IR
One Harbour Square 621Z » 9i% -
1018 - 1212 - 1568 161 - 1788 - “EMtE
1818 - 19 k202 YN EEMBRITIR YN = o= B
Unit 1 of 6th, 9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th,  Office 12,591 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047  Completed 100%
17th, 18th, 19th and 20th floors, Inland Lot No. 173
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENERRBREIBIR —EMtE
One Harbour Square 42{BiZ & (A BERLE173% HE  AA=TH B3k
42 car parking spaces, Car parking 525 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047  Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, ~ spaces Inland Lot No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
REBZERRNERE
Stock of completed properties
in Hong Kong
BRNERRBEBI8IR “EMLE
One Harbour Square 612232 R7E  HAZR BRABET3R ®AE  ~A=TA B
Unit 2 and 3 of 6th and 7th floors, Office 2,206 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Inland Lot No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENERRGEEIBIR “EMLE
One Harbour Square 15&E 1z FBfi EERLRIT3E B8 ~A=TH B3
15 car parking spaces, Car parking 188 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047  Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road,  spaces Inland Lot No. 173

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Schedule of Principal Properties
RZF—NF+=ZH=+—H Asat31 December 2016

BRAREEE
NEEBRUE ER (B5K) L R# HEHR  THER ZREER
Approximate Gross Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose  Lease Expiry Completion Interest
REE 2 RENS
Investment properties in Hong Kong
BENEEEBRRIBIR
One Harbour Square 91 » 1018 - 121« EMtE
158 - 1618 + 1712 - 18E 21918 YN EEMBRITIR BrE  ~R=TH B
9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18thand  Office 10,738 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047  Completed 100%
19th floors, One Harbour Square, Infand Lot No. 173
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEEREEEIBIN “EQMLE
One Harbour Square 16/EE &1 BEf BRMLE173%5 HE  SAZTH B3
16 car parking spaces, Car parking 200 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road,  spaces Inland Lot No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
UREBZERRNERE
Stock of completed properties
in Hong Kong
BENEEEBRRIBIR ZEMLE
One Harbour Square 618 * 78 k208 HAE BEABBI73% BRE  RA=TH BRM
6th, 7th and 20th floors, Office 4,059 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Inland Lot No. 173
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEEEBRRI81R ZEMLE
One Harbour Square 41{EZEfi Fa8fi EERBR17IR B8 ~A=TH B3
41 car parking spaces, Car parking 513 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
One Harbour Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, ~ spaces Inland Lot No. 173

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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